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ASSKET PURCHASE AGRFEEMENT

THIS ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT is mado as of this 29th day of
Scptember, 2000, by and between CIC Acguisition Corp., 2 Delaware corporation (“Buyer™), and
PenOp Lisvited, 2 company organized under the laws of Englund snd Wales (“PenQOp UK"), and
PenQp Inc., a Delaware corporation (“PenOp'; PenOp UK and PenQp each boing refarcd to
herein az 4 “Scller,” and being referred 1o topether as “Sellers™. -

WHEREAS, Sellers have agreed W convey to Ruyer, and Buyer has agreed to
acquire (tom Sellers, certain of the asscts used or usable in connection with Scllery’ business (the
“Buginess™), as set forth herein, upon the lerms and conditions zet forth herein.

NOW, THERERORE, in considcration of the ropresentations and warrmntics and
the mutual covenants and agroements herein contained, and other good and valuable
considerntion, the receipt and adequacy of which are heroby acknowiedged, Scllers artd Buyer da
hercby agree as follows:

1. Definitions.

1.1 Termz Defined in thiy Section. In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this
Agrecment, the foflowing terms shall have the following meanings when uscd herein with initiat
capital letters:

“Affiliate” means, with rcspect to any Person, any other Persou controlling,
controlled by or under comuuon contol with, sueh Person, with “control” for such purpose
meuning the possension, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the
managemcat and policics of a Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities or
voting interests, by contract or otherwisc,

“Assumed Instruments™ means the Cotitracts and Goverunecntal Authorizations, if

any, set forth in Schedvle 1.1A.

“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sundny or a day on which
commercial bauks in New York, New York are required by law 1o be closed,

“CIC” means Communication Intelligence Corpotation, a Delaware corporation
and the parent corporution of Buyer,

“Copunercial Software Rights™ means packaged commcn_ciazly available soltwure
programs that are gencrally available to the public through retail dealers in computer soflware.

“Devclopments™ menns, collcctively, any and all developments, cnhancemgms.
refinements, upgrades and documentation with respect to ideas, inventions, products, services,
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know-how, trade gecrets, pragrams, procedures, strategies and other works of authorship and
other propoctary nights.

“Employcc™ means any person employed by a Schler.

“Rscrow Agent™ means Citibank, NA, or such other bank, brokerage firm or
trust company on which Sellers and Buyer shall agroa.

“Euczow Agreement™ rocans the Escrow Agreemcnt to be eatered inlo at Closing
armong, Scliers, BDuyer and the Bscrow Agent, substantially in the form of BExhibit A.

“Exchange Act™ means the Sceurities Exchange Act of 1934, us nmended.

"Goveramental Authority” muuns (f) the United States of Awmerice or any other
country or nation, (ii) any stato, commonwenlth, territory or possession of the United States of
America of any other country o nation, and any political subdivision thereof, including counties,
municipalitics and the like or (iii) any agency, suthority or instrumentality of sny of the
foregoing, including any cowrt, tribunal, department, bureau, commission or board,

“Governmental Authorization™ means any authorization, agreement, License or
parmit relating to the operation of any part of the Business or 4ny of the Assets that is obtained
from or issued by any Governmental Authority and is used or usefal in the operation of the
Business, including any amendment or modification tharcof or any supplement thereto,

) “Indemnity Shares” means 940,000 Shares, to be withheld fn;m the Shares
delivered in respect of the Purchase Price and deposited with the Escrow Agent pursuunt
Secrion 3.2(b)(i1).

“Intellectual Property™ means any or all of the following and aif rights in, arising
out of, or associnted therewitly, including goodwill with respect thereto, anywhere in the world:
() Pateat Rights; (1) trade secrets and other proprictary infonnation; (1) copynights, muask work
rights, copyright registrations and applications therefor; (iv) web mddresses, sites and domain
names; (v) industrial designs and any registrations and applications therefor throughout the
world; (vi) Trademarks; and (vii) any similar, corresponding or equivalent rights to any of the
forcgoing, including any Davelopments and Related Trohnology with respect thereto,

“Knowledge of Seller,” “Sellers’ Knowledge™ or similar words shall mean the
setunf knowledge of any of Scilers’ officers or directors or the other persons identified in

Schedule 1.18.

“Legal Requirement” means any statule, omdinance, wode, &aw.‘ yule, regulation,
permit or permit condition, adminisimtive or judicial decree, ordor of other’teqt'nreme'nt, sumdard
ot procedure enacted, adopted or applied by any Govemmental A'mhmty, including jpdicial
decisions applying common faw or interpreting any other Legal Requirement.

“Licensc™ means aay license or other authworization (ether than a Iicc_nsc solcb,'«
with respect 1o Commecrcial Software Rights) issued or granted by 2 Peoson othier than 2
Governmental Autherily that authorizes the usc of any Scller Intelicctual Propesty.
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“Lica™ mcans any licn, sccurity intcrest, mortgage, pledge, charge, claim, equity,
cncurnbrance, restriction on transfer, conditionsl sale, or other title retention device or
arrangement (including, without timitution, a capital lease), transfer for the purpose of subjection
to the payment of any indebtedness, or testriction on the creation of any of the foregoing,
whether relating to any property or right or the incorne or profits therefiom.

“Material Adverse Effect” means a material sdverse effect on the business,
financial condition, results of operations, assets or liabilities of any Seiler or any of the Assets.

“Material Consents™ means the Required Consents marked with asterisks in
Schedule 1.1C.

2l

“Nasdaq SmullCap Maorket” means a ter of the electronic securities wacket
operated by The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. that is comprized of competing ronrket makers
whose trading is supported by a comynunications network linking them {0 quotafion
disscmination, trude reporting and order execution systems, which ter is comprised of secyritics
that mect the requirements of and arc authorized as “Nasdag SmallCap Market” securities (as
defirted under the repulations promulgeted by the Netional Association of Securitics Dealers).

“Dutside Closing Date™ mesns October 6, 2000.

“Patent Rights” means (i) all patenis and patent spplications and any inventions
disclosed in any of the foregoing patents and patent applications; (i) any and all counterpart
U.S., international and foroign patents, applications and certificates of invention based upon or
covertog any portion of the foregoing, patenids, applicaiony and inventions; (iii) ail divisions,
continuations, continuations-in-part, and substitutions of any of the preceding patents and patent
applications; (iv) ull foreign or intcrnational applications corresponding to say of the preceding
applications or patents: (v} all divisions, coatinuations, continuationa-in-part, and substitutioss of
any of such foreign or intemnationa] applications doscribed in (iv); and (vi) all U.S., intemational
and forcign putents issuing on any of the preceding spplications, including extensions, rcissucs
and re-examinations.

“Porson” means any natural person, corporation, partnership, trust, unincorporated
organization, association, limited liability company, Governmental Authority or other entity.

“Product Liability’ shall mean any liability or other obligation (whether alleged
or othierwise) of a Seller or any agent or affiliate thercof respecting any express or implicd
representation, warranty, guaranty, agreamen, arangement or understanding :fwdc (or ch;umod
to have been made), or imposed (or claimed to have been imposed) by operation of applicable
{aw, in respect of the Asscts or Products.

“products” means (cxcept with respect to Corx‘{m&r.cinl Software Rights) all
products and scavices sold, licensed, developed or odx‘otwisP provided by Sellers to customers of
other thind parties, ot supported by Sciiers, in connection with the Busincss.

” i i ts, affidavits,
“Related Agreements” means all written agreemenis instrurneats, a
certificatcs and other documents, other than this Agreement, that are executed and dolivered by
Buyer or cither Seller pursuant to this Agreement.

3
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“Retated Technology” means any or all of the following and all rights in, arising
out of, or associated therewith anywliere tn the world: (i) all inventions (regasdicss of vhethes
patentable), invention disclosures, improvements, derfvatives, know-liow, tectnology, technicat
data; (it} all schematicy, drawings, net lists, notes and notchooks, specifications, bills of material,
and tooling, (i) all computer sofiware, including all source code, object code, finmware,
development tools, flow charts, annotations, files, records and dats, and all mediz in which any
of the foregoing is recorded; (iv) all customer lists; (v) aif databuscs and data collections and ail
rights therein throughout the world; and (vii) all documentation relating to any of the foregoing,

“Required Coasents” means all conzents, upprovals, authorizations, waivers and
othwr scts of Govemmentad Auwthoritics ami other Persons under Contracts, Governmental
Authorizations and other instriments and pursuant to Iegal Requirements and otherwise that are
necessary in connection with the consummation of the trapmactions contemplated by this
Agreement and the Related Agrecments, all of which Reoguircd Conscnts are sct forth in
Schedule LIC,

“SEC” meauns the Securities and Exchange Commission.
“Securities Act™ menns the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,

“Shares™ means shares of CIC™s common voting stock, heving & puwr valuc of
$0.01 per share.

“Taxes” or “Tax” means and includes, without limitation, all net income, capital
guing, gross Incomne, gross receipt, property, franchise, sales, use, excise, withholding and other
taxcs, asscssments, levies, fees, duties, taciffs and other charpes of any kind imposed upon a
Seller or any of the Asscty, as applicable, by fodetal, fotvign, state or local law, 1ogether with any
interest and any penalfies, or additions to tax and additionn! amounts, validly imposed with
respect (o such taxes.

“Trademarks™ means all trademarks, trade names, service muuks, trade dress and
logos, twgether with all translations, adaptations, dcrivations and combin?ﬁons thereof,
regardicss of whethee any of the forcgoing is rogisteced or is the subject of a p:ondmg application,
and including all goadwill associated therewith, existing or arising anywhere in the world.

1.2 Qther Definitions, The following terms are defined in the Sections indicated:

VA ——"

Femm Section
Assets 2.W{x}
Assumed Qbtigations 2.2{a}
Assumption Agreement 7.9}
Books and Records 2.1(a)(iv)
Business Recital
Buyer Financial Statements 55
Buycr Indemaitees 9.2(x)
Claim 9.2(c)
Claim Notice 9.3(b)
Cloging 3.2(a)

4
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Term Scction

Ciosing Date 3.2(8)
Code 3.4
Confidcnual Information 6.3(b)
Consulting and Reimbursement 6.12
Agreesnent
Contracts 4,10(a)(ix)
GAAP 5.5
Excluded Assets 2.1()
Financial Statements 4.5(a)
Indemnpitee 9.3(b)
Indemnitor 9.3(b)
1999 Financial Statcioonts 6.8(h)
Non-Competition Agreements 6.9
Personal Property [.eases 4.8
Post-Closing, Payment G.10
Premises 6.1t
Purchase Price 3.1
Purchase Price Shares 6.6(b)(1)
Registration Statement 5.6(b)(A)
Resnle Perod 6.6(0)G)
SEC Documents 55
Scllcr Indemnitees . 9.2(b)
Seller Intellectual Property 2.1(a)()
Sexvice Records 4,12
Subsequent Purchasers . 6.6(b)(i1)
Tangible Personal Property 2. 1a)3)
UK. Auditing Standards 4.5(a)

2. Salg of Assels: Assuraption of Certain Obligations

21 Soles of Asgets,

() Subject to the terms, provisions and conditions conteined in this
Agrooment, Sclers agree to sell, assign, transfes, convey and deliver to Buyer, and Buyer agrecs
to purchase and acquire from Selfers, at the Closing, all dgit, title and interest of Selters in the
Assets (as defined hevein), free and clear of aff Liens, The “Asnets” shalf mean, col{ectively, the
following:

) all of Sellers’ rights in, 10 and with respect to the Iutellecrual
Property that is owned by Sellers or that is otherwisc used or held for use in the Business ("Scller

Intelicetnal Propecty™);

(in all of Sellers’ rights in and to the cquipment, suppli;:s and c;gu':r

i i ing s i i 2 for or is being used m
tangible personal property, including inventories thereof, that is necessary s

(hcgusc ;nd opcration (including testing) of the Seller Intcllectual Property as it is or has been

5
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used or aperated in the Business (“Tangible Personal Property’™, other than such property as is
listed In Schedule 2. 1(a)(31);

{iit) . Sellers” rights under the Assumed Instruments, other than accounts
receivable in respect of obligations discharged by Scllers prior to the Closing;

(iv)  all books, records (except financial records and ledgers), customer,
supplier and vendor lists, databases and other information und data (except, subject to Section
6.2(c), (A) c-mail and (B) any other records containing nforrmaticn of thivd parties that is
piotected by 2 current, valid nondisclosure agreement that 15 binding upon Sellers), credit
records, competitor information, marketing, advertising and promotional literature and other
materinis und plans relating to the Business (“Books_and Records™), subject 1o a Seller®s right, at
any tirac and ffom timo to time, on reazonable notice and during normal business hours, to make
ond rewin copies of and have sccess to the forepuing solely 1o the extent ceasonably neccsyary {o
enable Sellers 10 wind up the Buginess, prepare and file all necessary tax returns, comply with
any other Legal Requirements and comply with or enforce any contractual or other obligation ur
Tight, inciuding without limitation under this Agreement, the Related Agreements, the Assumed
Obligulions or those agreements listed in Schedule 4,10 and Sefters’ right to defend with respect
to any of the foregoing; provided, that Sellers shall have no such rights with respect 1o source
code or software documentation (except as necessary in conpection with Selfers” participation in
any legal provecdings to which a Scller is o parly) or with respect (0 any other reconds generally
considered 10 constitute intelectual property or propristary infonmnation (except to the extent
necessary for Sellers” preparmtion of tax returns and financial statements and participation in any
legal procecding to which a Seller is a party);

'82 all mtengible rights and claims relating to or arsing out of the
Scller Imteliectuni Propearty, the Assumed lnstriments and the Tangible Persomsl Property,
including all nghts in snd with respect 1o gpoodwill relating thereto and all inchouate rights with
respect thereto and claima against other Pasons in connection therewith,

(b) Buyer zhafl not scquire any assets, rights or properties of Sellors other
than os expressty set forth in Section 2.1(a). Without limiting the penerality of the forcgoing, the
Assets shall not include, and Buyer shall not acquire any interest in or to, any of the following
(alf assefs, rights and properties not acguired by Buyer under this Agreement being referved to

colleetively au the “Exsfuded Assers™: |
(0] insurance policies of Sellers and rights and eluims thereunder;

G bends, letters of cradit, surety instuments and other stmilar ittems
and any stocks, bonds, certificates of deposit and stmilar investments of Sellers;

(i)  accovnls roceivable, cash and cash equivaleals and notes
receivable of Solters:

(iv)  prepaid expenses;

(v) security deposits;
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(vi}  Scllers® secounting soltware aod hinancial records saftware and sl
data related to such software;

(vit)  Sellers® minute books and stock ledgers;

(viil) Scllers’ ecmployee benefits plane and  cmployment-reluted
contracts;

(ix)  Sellers” rights under this Agreement and the Related Agrecments;

(x) Sellers” worldwide financial, UJ.8. financial and management
databages;

(x3)  the legal apinton of White & Cage LLP addressed to Scllers, dated
September 6, 2000; and

(xti)  all rights of Sellers to the cash deposit made in connection with the
Letters of Intent dated June 7 and June 8, 2000, by and betweoen PenOp Limited and CyberSign
Japan Incorporated.

2.2 Anstimed Oblipations.

(1) Subject to the temms, provisions snd conditions contained tn this
Agreement, at the Closing, Buyer ahatf assume and shal) falfil, perforns or otherwise discharge
only those obligations of Scllery arising under the Assumed Instruments that arc 1o be performed
from and after the Closing Date (“Assumaed Qbligations™.

(L) Other than the Assumed Qbligations, Buyer shall not agsmne or be bound
by or otherwise be responsible for any duties, responsibilities, obligations or liabilitics of any
kind or nature, knowt, unknows, contingent or otherwise of Sellers relating to the Business or
otherwise, whether arising prior o, on or after the Closing. Subject to but without timiting the
generality of the foregoing, Buyer shall not assume, undertake or aceept any duty, responsibility,
obligation or liability of either Sclier (whether cxisting as of the date hereof, m the Closing or
arising in the future) with respect (o:

(i) any Liability or obligation of Sellers or any ol their Afliligtes
relating to the operation of tie Business;

(i)  any lability or obligation of Scllers or any of their Affilintes
rofating to the ownerhip or operation of the Assets on or prior 1o the Closing Date;

(i)  any Habitity or obligation of Sellers or any of their Afliliates
relating, to the Excluded Assets;

(iv)  any sccounts payable of Sellers relating fo the Assets incuned on
or poior to the Closinyg Date;
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) any liability or obligation under Clontracts that are not Assumed
Instruments;

(vi) any Hability or obligation arising out of 8 breach or default by a

Scller at or prior to the Closing (including any event occurring prior 10 the Closing that with the

passage of time or giving of nofice, or both, would become z breach or default under any
sswned Instrument):

(vit) any lability or obligution with respect to any claim or
governmental procceding or investigation, whother cxisting on the date hereof ot arising
hereafler, arising out of ownership of the Asscts by Scllers on or prior to the Closiag Date;

(viii) any lability or obligation of Selicrs to sny Employec;

(ix) any Hability or obligation with respect to (A) any Tax related 10
Sollers, (B) any Tax related to the Business that is atributable to a period on or prior to the
Closing Date or (C) any Tax arising out the ownership of the Asscts by Scllers on or prior to the
Closing Date;

=) any lability in respect of any indebnedness of Scilers or the
Business; or

(xi) nny liability in sespect of any interest in real property of Sellers.
3. Purchase Price: Closing.

3.1 Purchase Price. The nggregate purchase price for the Assets shall be 4,700,000
Shares (the “Purchase Price™).

3.2 Maposrand Time of Closing: RDelivery of Purchase Price Shares.

(a} Subject to the satisfiction or wuiver of afl conditions (o closing set forih in
Sections 7 and 8, the closing of the transactions coatemplaicd herein (the “Cloging™) shall take
place at 10:00 aan. a the offices of Baor Marks & Upham LLP, 805 Third Avenue, New York,
New York 10022, or at such other time and location mutually determined by Scllers and Buye_r.
on the second Business Day following the satisfaction or waives of the conditions aet (orth in
Articles 7 and 8 hereof {other than those conditions set forth in Section 7.9 (other thau
Subsection (b} or () thereof) and Scction 8.6 (other than Subsection (b} thereof), but in :10 event
Jater than the Qutside Closing Date (such date on which the Closing actually occurs, the “Closing,

S

@)  ArClosing,

{® Buyer shall deliver to Sellers certificates representing the Purchase
Price, which Sharcs shall be registered on CIC's books in the names and percentage
denorninations set forth in Schodule 3.2; and
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(i Buyer, Scliers and the Escrow Agemt shall enter into the Escrow
Agroement, pursuant o which Scllers shall deposit in escrow with the Bscrow Agent (he
Indemnity Sharcs, together with executed stock powers, cndorsed in blank, 1o enable the Escrow
Agent to transfer such Shares to Buyer. Tho Indemnity Shures shall be held, sold and otherwise
disburscd by the Escrow Agent in accordance with the terms of the Escrow Agreement in owder
for such Indernity Shares andfor the procceds of sales thereof to provide a fund for the payment
of indernnification to Buyer, subject to Section 9.

3.3 Allogation of Purchase Price. The Purchase Price shall be allocated among the
Assets ard the covensnt contained i Section 6.9 as sct forth In Schedule 3.3, and eéach party
shall malce all appropriate tax and other filings on a basis consistent with such allocation.

34 Tax Defeed Reorganization. The acquisition of Assets from PenOp hereunder is
intendad 10 be a “reorganization” within the menning of Section 368(a)Y(1XC) of the Internal
Revenue Code (the “Code™), and this Agrecment is intended to constitute a “plan of
reorganization” within the meaning of the regulations promulgated under Section 368 of tlhe
Code, and Buyesr and Seliers agree 1o prepare and file tax returns that are consistent with such
intentions.

3.5 Liguidation of Sellers. Seliers ngree that PenOp shall not be liquidated carlier
than one year following the Closing Date, and Sellers agree that upon such liguidation, all of the
obligations and Babilitics of PeoOp shull be assumied by, ard all of the assets of PenOp shall be
transferred to, PenOp UK. Selless agree that PenOp UK shall not be liquidated earlicr than two
(2) years following the Closing Date. ‘

4. Representations and Warranties of Sellers.  Sellers, jointly and scvernily, hercby
ropresent and warrant to Buyer as follows:

41  incorpomtion. Ouabifieation: Corperate Power. PanOp i3 a comportion, and
PenQp UK is a lianited Hability company, each duly incorporated, validly existing and in good
standing (or the cquivalent, as may be appropriatc under UK. law) under the laws of the
jurisdiction of itz respective incorporation, with full corporate or limited liability company
power, as the case may be, and authority to own, lease or license its properties and assets anc{ to
carry on the Business and any other businesses in which it is enpaged in the manncr in which
such businesses are now carried on. Bach Scller is duly qualified to transact bustaess in all other
jurisdictions where the ownership, leasing or licensing of its propaticy and assets and the
carrying on of its busincsses as a foreign corporation rcquircs'such qualification (o_r. the
equivalent, as may be appropriste under UK. law), except for any failure to so qualify that is not
reasonably likely to huve a Materisl Adverse Eilfect.

4.9 Capagitys Pue Authorization: Enforccability. All reqquisite corpow:{c ot ;_imit:d
liability comp:;ny actions, as the casc may be, required fo be taken by cach S;(ak:r Rc;ria: rg
execution, delivery and performance by such Scller of !hi;-z:z| AhzgmmvrQ Htc;nlt -.:s:‘fhumm!l(;ég n;%pmi.w

' ich it 1 duly taken. Each d>eiic 2
Agreements 1o which it is a party bave been | 2 et to
x i s Agrocmont and the Relat £re ‘
Wd legal right, power and authority to cnicr into th.:s ‘ :
:hich&it is Ef'}ml:‘y and to consummare the transactions oantcmpm:dtscr:by a:;! ;‘I:o;c‘.z;; m’{;hg;
Agreement has been duly executed and delivared by tach Seller, and this
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the Related Agreements to which cach Seller is o parly, upon execution and delivery, will be,
legal, valid and binding obligation of such Seller enforceable in accordance with their respoctive
terrns, excepl in cach caso to the exient that such enforcement may be subject to applicable
bankruptey, reorgmizalion, insolvency, moratorium ot similar laws of gencral application
affecting the nights and remedics of creditors or secured parties, and that the availability of
equitable remedies, including specific perforinance, injunctive relief and reformation, may be
subject to equitable defenses and the discrotion of the court before which any procecding therefor
imay be brought. .

4.3 Absence of Conflicting Apreements. Schedule 1,1C sets forth all of the Required
Consents. Provided that ail of the Required Consents are obtained, the cxecution and delivery of
this Agreement and the Relaled Agreements and the consuromation of the transactions
contemplated horchy and thercby by Sellers will not (a) violme PenOp’s Cenificate of
Incorporation or Bylaws or PenOp UK's Certificate of Incorporation and Memorandum and
Articles of Assccistion, or other applicable coopstituent daocumcnts; (b) vialate any [Legal
Requirements applicable to Sellers, the Assels, the Business or the Assumed Obligations;
(c) conflict with, result in any bresch of or default, event creating rights of acceleration,
termination or cancellntion or a loss of rights under, or require any paymemt to or confor any
material rights upon any third party under or pursuant to any Governmentnl Authorization,
Contract or other instrument or judgment, order, award or decree to which a Seller is a party or
by which any of the Asscis, the Business or a Seller is bound or affected, or any statute, law,
regulatory provision or other Legal Requirement to which a Seller, the Assets or the Business is
subject ar by which it is bound; (d) require sither Seller to pay damages, tormination fecs or
stmiiar penalties 1o sy Person; (¢) result in the creation or imposition of any Lien on any of the
Assets; oc () cesult in the acceleration af ths dusc date of any materinl oblipation of either Scller.

A4.4 Affilistes. Other then PenOp and two other subsidiaries that are dormant
(namely, Peripheral Vision 12d. and Peripheral Vision Inc.), PenOp UK has no subsidiaries, and
neither Seller has any other Affiliste (other than each other and its respective officers, directors
and sharcholders) or holds any interest in any other Person. Neither Signature One Inc. (or any
other Affitiate of Sellers with a zimilar name), Peripheral Vision Ltd. or Peripheral Vision Inc.
holds any assets.

4.5  Financial Statements: Absence of Undisclosed Li

(a) Setlers have delivered to Buyer true and cortect copies of the following
financial stntements: (i) an auditod consolidated balunce sheot of Sclicrs us of Docember 31,
1998 and unmuditcd consolidated balance sheets of Sellers as of l?occmbcr:&l, 1999, and
Tune 30, 2000; (i) audited statements of {ucome {or the [2-nwuth penod em’lt'ﬂ Dtx:gmbelf. 3}.
1998; and (i) unandited statements of income snd cash flaws for the 12- and six-rmont "pcno"—i
ended Deocember 31, 1999, and June 30, 2000, rm_spccnvc\y ((:,ol\ectwc&y, the %\M}E
Statements™). Selters have also dclivercd to Buyer copies of all audit response ictt];rs rc b;r;gu
Sellers and the Busincss that are in final form for the 12.month period caded sc:v;:;.::;n}s o u“;
1998, Except as set forth in Schodufe 4.5, 510 r;ldlt x{:lponsc;c:::;:d r;:)l:::(i bteor 3? o,

usiness have been prepared with respect to the 12-month porio L »

so audit letters to ml:mfgcmcnt have been prepared in respect of So;‘lc(; l:)r l;h:ns‘;;m;ﬂtx?smr:: c:flt:
12-month periods ended December 31, 1998, and December 31, 1999. ¢ Fi
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have been prepared in accordance with the books and records of the respective Sellers and have
becn prepared in accordance with the UK. Companies Act of 1985 and Auditing Standards
issued by the U.K. Auditing Practices Roard, each as in effect from time to Gme (collectively,
“UK_Auditing Standards™), consistentlly upplied throughout the periods covered thereby, The
Financial Statements present fairly the consolidated and consolidating financial position, results
of operntions and cash flows of Scllers and the Business at the respective dates thereof and
throughout the respeclive periods covered thereby (except that the Fipancial Statements as of
Deccraber 31, 1998, and for the 12-month period then ended do not cover caslt flows) subject, it
the case of unaudited Financial Statetnents, to normal year-end acorvals end audit adjustments
and 1o the absence of footnotes thereto, none of which is material, There hos been no change in
Sellers® aceounting policics exeept ns described in the notes to the Financial Statements,

(o)  Excopt as otherwise expressly disclosed in any of the Schedules hereto or
in the unaudited Finmnclal Statements covering any period or as of any date after December 31,
1999, there has been no change gince December 31, 1999 with reypect to Scllars, their respective
aysers or, to Scllers” Knowledpe, their respective businesses that would materially affect the
Asscts, other than changes in gencral cconomic nnd business conditions that do not rclate
spocifically to Sellery or the Asncots,

() Excopt az set forth in the Financial Statements, and except for liabilitics
and obligitions incurred in the ordinary course of Scliers’ business consistent with past practices,
since December 31, 1999, neither Sclior has incurred any liability or obligation of any nature
(whether accrued, absolute, contingent or ovihorwise) with respeet 10 the Asaets or the Business
for which Buyer may become Hable, other than the Assumed Obligations, or that may adversely
affect the Agscts in any materinl respoct.

4.6  Absence of Certain Changes. Hxcept as set forth in Schedule 4.6, dwing the
period from Deceraber 31, 1999, 1o the date as of which this representation i3 made, inclusive,
Scllers have operated the Business in the ordinary course, consistent with past practices, and no
event, trunsaction or circumstaoce has occurred with respect to Selles, the Asscts or the
Busincss that could result in o lability to Buyer afler the Closing, other than the Assumed
Obligations and general economic and business conditions that do not relaie specifically to
Scllers or the Assets.

4.7 [mellectupl Propecty.

(a) Schedule 4.7(a) sets fosth, by Selies, sach Pateut Rigiw, (rademack. u‘udc
narae, scrvice mark, service name, registered copyright, and spplications for regxstmnmiog the
foregoing, and cach web address, web site and domain name and all software {other hg;
Commercinl Software Rights) inchided within the Seller _chiioctual Properiy, ‘ogc\{v?r, w{‘ e
applicable, with ol application and tegistration numbers w:gh yespoct theretn, 3:16 :d;nmics f; e
owner(s) thereof and of any of Sellers ticensees and s:ubhcensms thereof and 2 cs:x 22;3 n ol
any Licenses by which Sellers have acquited cights with tespect therelo. Schedule 4.

describes any proceedings and actions o which either Seller is 2 party before any cowt oF other

tribunal (including the Unit : )
Apypeals (Boaxd or equivalent authority anywhere in the world)

Intellectual Property.

jals and
J Trademoark Office, Trademark Trial
e o rr:lnt::d to any of the Sclier
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o) Except as set forth in Schedule 4.7(h), and except for Commercial
Software Rights, (i) Sellers own and have good and exciusive title to, or have the exclusive legal
Tights Lo use in tho Business, each iten of Seller Intellectual Property, frec and cleur of any Liens
{other than licenses to Seller Intellectunl Property granted by Scllem in the ordinary course of
business); (11} have oxclusive rights (and are nol coatractually obligated to pay any compensation
to any third party in respect thereof under any license, covenant not 1o suc, settlement, or othey
agrcoment) 10 the use thercof or the material covered therchy; {iii) to the extent that any work,
invention, or material has been developed or created by a third party for g Seller, such Seller has
entered inlo 2 wrillen “work for hire” or similar agreement with, or has received 4 written
assignment or exclusive license from, such third pzrly with respect thereto whereby such Seller
has obtained exclusive ownership of or rights 1o all Intellectuz! Property in such work, material
or invention; and (iv) no Pearson who has licensed Seller Intellectunl Property fo a Scller has
owanership cights-or license rights to Developments or Rolated Technology crested by either
Seller in connection with such Sclier Intellectunl Property.

(c) Exccpt as set forth in Sgheduie 4.7(c). and except with resgoct (o
Commercinl Software Rights, neither Selier has trunsferred ownership of, gramted any ticense or
other right to vsc or anthorized the retention of any tight to use any Intcllectual Property to my
Porson, Schedule 4.7(s) sets forth & complete list of all licenses, sublicenscs and other
instrumeats limiting or otherwise affecting Stlless® rights in any of the Seller Intellectual
Property, including the identity of all parties thereto, the Seller Intellectual Property cavered
thoreby, o description of the nature and subject matter thercof, any applicable royaity and the
term thercof,  Jxcept as set forth in Scheduls 4.7(c), the executica and dclivery of this
Agrecment by Sellery, and the consummntion of the transactions comemplated hereby, will not
result in Buyer (as a result of ite assumption of the Assumed Instruments) or either Seller
pranting any rights or licenses with respect 1o any Intellectun] Property (o any third party or any
third party otherwisc obtaining any rights (by operation of law or atherwisc) in any of the Scller
Intellectual Property. ’

@ "Tho Products (including the same or modified Products used, licensed or
sold by Buyer afler the Closing Date) have not, do not and will not directly or coniributoa:ily
infringe or misappropriste any Person's Intellectual Property axisting as of oc prior to the Closing
Date, violate any Person's other rightr (including tights ta privacy and publicity) cxisting as of ot
prior to the Closing Date ot violate any Legul Raquimneuts_ (inclua‘iigg gl Roquirements
relating to unfair trade practices, false advertising aod dcﬁ‘nmatxot'x) existing as of or prior to the
Closing Date. However, Scllers make no wasranty in t_hm Se'c.tto'n 4.7{(3) ?uu thlc future u:;
license or sale of any Products by Buyer or any Person will not infringe any Person’s nz;clllo%q
Property cxisting as of or prior to the Closing Date, viplalc any Person’s ather ?;ghts Sxm ;1‘ sgx;ﬁ
rights o privacy ot publicity) existing as of or prior L the Closing Dalc‘or~wf);ulc .;n‘y u:l :
Requircment (including Legal Requirements rolating to unfair trade praciices, falsc adverusuy;

and defamation) existing 8s of or prior to the Closing Date, if such Products arc modified and

i i infri i iati iolation. E t as set forth
such modification results in such infringement, rmisappropriation or violation Excep o

3 1 z laim has been
t nedule 4,7{d), neither Seller has received ary naticc ol und go clai =
:.;r%iwwd apuinst either Seller, or, to Seller's Knowledge, any of their respective customets,

fom any Person claiming that such operation or any act, Product, toohnolo?,y ocrh z,rs.r:;c:r
{including Products, technology or sarvices currently under development) of su
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infringes or misappropriates the Intellectual Property or any right of any Persoa or violates any
Legal Requircments,

() Excopt as set forth in Schedule 4.7(e}, (i} ¢sch item of owned Sclier
Intellectual Property, and 1o Selless’ Knowledge cach iftem of Seller Intellectual Property
licensed to a Seller, is valid and subsisting, (ii) ail necessary registmtion, mantenance and
renewal fees in connection with owned Seller Intellectual Property have been paid to the extent
necesgary 50 as ot (0 impair the enforccability of the patent and trademark registrations set forth
in Schedule 4.7(), other than those registrations indicated in Schedule 4.7(a) as abandoned or
possibly abandoned; and (iii) afl necessary documents and certificates in conpection with owned
Seller Intellectual Property have been filed with the relevant patent, copyright, trademark or
other Governmental Anthoritics for the putposes of maintaining Sellers’ rights in such owned
Seller Intellectuul Property. Ench Seller has taken all steps reasonably required to protect such
Seller's rights in any owned Scller Intellectunl Property consisting of teade secrcts and other
confidential informmution, it being understood that “teasonable sieps™ shall include, without
limitation, catering into writtey, confidentiality agroements with consultants and/or ather thirg
parties that have access to Scllers’ confidentis) information and cotering into written employee
invention disclosuro agreemants with Employees,

143) There is no contract, ficense or agreement between any Seller and any
other P'erson with respect {0 any Seller Intcllectual Froperty under which there is any dispute
regarding the scope of such agreement or performance under such agreement. Except as sct forth
in Schedule 4.7(f), () neither Seller fus any currently pending claim against any Pemon for
infringing or misappropriating any Seller Intcllcctual Property; and (i5) no Seller Intellectual
Property or any Product of either Scller is subject to any legal proceeding or any outstanding
decree, order, judgment, agreement or stipulation, to which cither Sclfer is a party or by which
either Seller is bound or, to Sellers® Knowledge, affected, that restricts in any masner the usc,
transfer or liceusing, thereof by Scllers or may affect the validity, use or enforcenbility of such
Selier Intellectial Property or Peoduct, other than patent and trademark prosecution proceedings
m the ordinary course of business, all of which are zet forth in Schedule 4.7(x).

(2) Except as set forth in Scheduje 4.7(x), nonc of Scllers’ professional
services agrecments with their end-uger customers, sgreements with outside consultants for the
performance of professional services on behalf of Scllers or customers of Sellers, or any
agreezents or licenses with any end-users or resellers of Sellers’ Products, confers upon any
party {other than a Seller) any ownership right with respect to any Seller Intcllectual Property
developed in connection with such sgreement or license.

¢h) Neither Scllers® fuilure to deliver the Seller I:_ﬂz!h.:ctt‘ml‘ Praperty describod
in clauses (A) 2nd (B) of the sccond parenthetical in Section 2.1(a)(v), individually or taken asa
whole, nor Sellers failure to comply with Section 6.2(c), will matcrially adversely allect Buyer's
ability to use and opemte the Products or the Scller Imcll‘ccma} Propesty acquired b,?‘B_ttycr
hereunder following the Clasing: nor will such failure materially adverscly aﬂ"a"at ,Buyrfr s xy,hts
in or 1o the Scller Intelicctual Propecty acquired by Buyer hereunder or result in any liabilily or

obligation to Buyer following the Closing.
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4.8 Personal Property. Schedule 4.8¢a) containg 4 list of all of the Tangible Personal
have good title to all of the Tangible Personal Property included within the Assets froc and cleac
of gll Liens, The Assets do not include any Tangible Personal Propetty thsl is leaned ot
subleased by cither Seller. All of the Tangible Petsonal Property included within the Assets is in
good opemting condition and repair in all material respects, oxcopt for ordinury wear and tear,
and is adequate in all material respects for the purposes for which it is intended.

49  Governmenta) Awthorizations.  Schedule 4.9 sets lodh cach Govemmeats
Amhorization held by Scllers and issued or used in connection with the Business and for cach,
(i) the namc of the issuing body or authority, (if) the expiration date and (fii) the subject matter
and any material terms theroof. Sellers have delivered to Buyer complete and correct copics of
all the Govermmental Authorizations required to be set forth in Scheduls 49, ¥ach
Govemmaental Authorization is valid, subsisting and i full force and effect and is not subject 10
any mategial restriction or condition and, except as set forth in Schedule 4.9, will continue in fulf
force and effect in nccordance with {tg terms after the Closing.  Sellers, and to Sellers?
Knowledge each other pasty thercto, are in complianco with the teoms and conditiony of ail the
Governmental Authorizations, and Scllers have pot reccived any nolice that they are or arc
alleged to be in breach or defanit under, or that there is or is alleged to be any basis for the
termination of, any Governmenial Authorization.

410 Contmucts.

{3) Sehedyle 4,10 sets (orth, by Scller, each of the following to which ejther
Seller is a party or by which any of the Assets, the Business or cither Seller is bound or affcoted:

(i) all Licenses, other than those set forth in Schedule 4.7(c), as w
which a Seller has any exceutory or unperformed obligation, or with respect to which Buyer's
failure to comply with the terms thereof, or Buyer’s tise or operation of any of the Products or
the Scller Intellectual Property in violation thereof or inconsistent with the terms thereaf, could
result in a liability to Buyer;

(i)  all contracts for Sallery® provision of Products to any Pesson as to
which a Sciler has any cxecutory oc uaperformed obligation, or with respect to which Buyer's
filure to comply with the terms thereof, or Buyer’s use or operation of aay of the Products or
the Seller Intcllectual Property in viclation thereof or inconsistent with the terms thereof, could
result in a Hability to Buyer;

(ili) 2l contructs for the puschasc or developmont of any Intellectual
Property 10 be used in the Business a8 © which a Seller h:m‘nny executory or unperformesd
obligation, or with respect to which Buyer's failure to comply with the terns d}cru_:f, or l‘auyer ¥
usc or operation of any of the Products or the Scller Inx_c!lcclual Property in violation thereol or
inconsistent with the teyms thercof, could result n = lisbility to Buyer,

(iv) any outstanding purchase arder, agreement  of cor}uuitrr{czlxi
obligating Scilers to purchase products or secviees or acquire, obtain ot dispose of any.intangible
rights io connection with the Business;
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(v}  any indebtedniess, installment sale agreement or liability for the
deferred purchase price refating to any of the Assets;

{vi}  any joint venturc or partnership agreement to which z Setler is a
party or by which it is bound, or any other artangement involving a sharing of profits or joint
development of Seller Intollectual Property,

(vii) avy agrecment limiting Sellers’ or the Business' ability to compete
in any busginess anywhere in the world;

(viii}y any confidontiality, nondisclosure or sirnilar agreemant to which
cither Seifer is a party and in respect of which Buyer’s use of the Assets could cause a brvuch of
such agrecinent or could resvit in a linbility to Buyer followisng the Closing; or

{ix) any other outstanding contract, agrecement, commitment,
understanding or instrument relating to Sellers, the Business or the Asscts that javolves or eould
involve, individually or in the aggregate, payments pursaant to their terrus of $25,000 or more,
othor than those coptracts snd other instruments inc{uded in Schedule 1.1A ot referred to in
Scctions 4.7(w), 4.7(b), 4.7(c), 4.7(f) and 4.8 (collectivoly, with such other coutracts and
instraments veferred to in clauses (2)(1) through {ix) and in Sections 4,7(z), 4.7(b), 4.7(¢), 4.7(D)
#nd 4.8, and the instruments imcluded in Schednle L.1A, the “Contincts™).

) Scllers have delivered to Buyer complete and correct copies of all written
Contracts and written sumnmaries of all such Contracts that are oral that telaie ta tho Assets or the
Assumod Obligations. Al of the Contracts are valid and binding and cnforceable in accordance
with their respentive torms on all partics thereto, except in each case to the extent that such
cnforcement may be subject to applicable bankruptey, reorganization, insolvency, moratorivm ot
simnilar laws of general gpplication and that the availability of cquitable reraedics, incleding
specific performance and injunctive reficf, may be subject w0 oquitsble defcayer and the
discretion of the court befbre which sny proceading derefor may be brought. Each Seller, and to
Scllers’ Knowledge ench other party thereto, has fulfilicd and performed in all material respects
its respective obligations under each of the Contracts to which it is 2 party or by which it or uny
of the Asscts or the Business ig bound, and no event has occurred, and no condition or statc of
facts exists that constitutcs, or after notice or lapse of time or both woulkt coastitite, & mutorial
breach or default thercof by Scllers, or to Scllers® Knowledge, any other parly thercto, or which
permits, or after notice or lapse of time or both would permit, a revocation or termination of any
such Contract by Sellers, or to Sellers® Knowledge, by apy other party thereto, or that may
adversely affeet in any rmaterial respect the rights of the respective Seller thersumder. No notice
of canccllation or defanlt conceming any Contract or of any event, condition or state of facts
described in this Seetion 4.10 has been received by cither Scller,

4.11 Products. Schedule 4,71{a) lists and describes each of l}'m Products pf the
Business, Except to the cxtent that Sellers have obtained, by license, the right .to scll,‘ ticense,
develop or otherwise provide any Product under subliccnse ot other 3@:&1}1&& with & t-hm! pﬁ)t:
(in which case, this ropresentation and warranty is basced so!cly on Seilers’ Knowledge), cad o
the Products has boen and iz in conformity with all applicable contmctmfl oomm\tmuzfz,nl;lc
cxpress and implicd warrantics with respect thercto and all Legal Requirements appht
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thereto. Neither Seller hag any Yiability for, and to Scllers’ Knowledge no basis exists {oe any
liability for, any replncoment, repair or remediation of any Product or for any other damages or
refunds in connection with any Product. Except as set forth in Schodule 4.11(h), none of the
Products is subject to any guaranty, wagraaty or other indemnity other than Sellers” applicable
standard terms and conditions of sale and standard guaranties and warrantics, copies of which are

set forth in Schedule 4.11(b).

4.12  Service Records. The Baoks and Reconds contain true and completo copies of all
service records with respect 1o all Contracts (“Service Rocords™), which Service Records have
been maintained in the ordinary course consistcnt with Scllera’ past practices. The Service
Records contgin (i) an accurate description of the Products covered by the relevant Contracty and

Sellers” obligations with respect thereto; (i) the identities of the customers wnl descriptions of

the Contrmcts with respoct thereto; (iil) all payments received with regpect to the Products
covered thereby and the dates of such paymenty; and (iv) all refunds, repairs and other
remodiation made with respect to such Products, and all claims with respect 1o Products Liability
or other deficicncies with respect to such Products, and the dates thereof. Except as expressly set
forth in Schedule 4,12, all Products are provided by Sellers ou an “ss is” basis without

continuing scrvice or mainlenance obligations on the part of Scilers.

413  Litigation. Except as sct forth in Schedule 4.13, there is no claim, legal action,
arbitration or other legal, govemmenta, administrtive or tax procceding, or any order,
complaint, decrec or judgment, or any dispute or controversy in progress, pending or, W Scllers’
Knowledge, threatened against or rolating to Sellets or sy of their directorm, officors, employees
or agents with respect to Sellers, the Asseis or the Husiness; noz, to Sellers” Knowledge, is any

investigation of such usture pending or threatened.

414  Complinnce with Laws.  Sellors are and have been, and the Asscts and the
Business are and have been operated, in compliance in all material respects with all Logal
Requirements uspplicable to them, and neither Sclier hus received any notice, or has any
Knowledge of any claim by any Pcrson, that Sellers, any of the Assets or the Busincss has not
bea or is not in compliance with any applicable Legal Requircment; provided, that this Section
4.14 shall not gpply to matteys addressed in Sections 4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.7(d), 4.7(e), 4.7(f), 4.9,
4.10(b), 4.11, 4,13, 4.15, 4.16, 4,17 and 4.23.

415  Taxes; Tax Retyms. Scllers have duly and timely filed in corroct form all federul,
state, local and non-UJ.8. Tax rctumns and other Tax roports required (o be filed by Sellers and
have timely paid all Taxes that have become due and payable, regardless of whether shown on
any such retum ot roport. Sellers have rcceived 1o written notice of, and Seliers have oo
Knowledge of, any deficicncy. assessment or audit, or proposed deficicncy, assessuasnt ar audit
by any taxing authority of any nation, statc or locality that could materially adversely affect, or
result in the imposition of a Lien upon, any of the Assets,

416 Ynnumnce apd Bopds. There is no claim by cither Scller Pcnding undc.r any
insurance policy or fidelity bond covering any of the Agscts or otherwize rclaun_g to the Business.
All premiums duc and psyable uader all such policics and bonds bave been paid, and Sellers ure
otherwise in compliance with the ferms of such policies and bondls.
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4.17  Absencc of Certain Payments. Neither Seliers nav any officer, divector, agent,
Employee or Affiliate of either Scller acting on behalf of sither Seller has paid any bribe or used
any of the Assets unlawfilly to obtain advuntupe for any Person or otherwise taken any action
that would result in a violation by either Seller of the United States Foreign Commupt Practices
Act of 1977 or any similar Legal Requirement applicable to Sellers or any Employees, sgents or
Affilistes thereol in respect of its actions on behulf of either Seller,  Without fimiting the
foregoing, to Scfiers’ Knowledge, neither Sellcrs por any of their respective officers, directors,
agents, Employees or Affiliates hae (i) dircctly or indiroctly given or agroed to give any illegal
gift, contribution, payment or similar benefit to any supplicr, customer, governmental official or
cruployee ot other Person who was or may have been, or is or may be, in a position to bielp or
hinder the use af the Astets or conduct of the Business a5 conducted by either Seller (or assist in
connection with any acusl transsction), made or sgreed to muke #ouy Begal contribution, or
reimbursed any itlegal political gift or contribution made by any other Person, fo any candidate
for Dnited States or foreign governmenta) office, in any event (A) which may subject cither
Scller to any damage or penalty in any civil, criminal or govemmental litigation or proceeding or
(B) the non-continuation of which hag had or could have, individusily or in the aggregate, a
Materinl Adverse Effect on the Business or Asscty. To Seflers’ Knowledge, ncither Selfer or any
of Sellers” officers, directors, Employees, agents or Affiliates acting on behalf of either Seller
has established or maintained any unrocorded fund or asset or intentionally tmade any materially
false entry on any of Sellers® books or records for any purpose,

4.13  Interested Party Transactions. Other than as a minority shareholder of a public
company holding less than five percent (5%) of the stock of such company, neither Scllers fior
any Affiliate thorcof or any trust, parinership or corporation in which a Seller or any such Porsan
Las an cconomic intcrest, has, directly or indirectly, (i) an economic intorest in amy cntity that
furmnighes or sclls services or products to cither Seller: or {it) an econormic interest in any entity
it is 2 customer of Sellers or the Busincss.or that otherwise purchases from or sclis or furnishes
to cither Seller any goods or services related o the Business.

419 Cugtomers. Schedule 4.19 lists cach Person that ix or, during the threc (3) years
preceding the date barcof, has been a customer of the Business,

420  Sufiicicncy of Assets. With the exception of the services of certain personnel, all
of which sorvices and personncl (excluding murketing, salcs and advocacy personuel) are
deseribed in Schednie 4,20, the Asscts constitute alt of the assets, sights and propertics neccssary
to use and operate the Scller Inteflectual Proporty as usod and operated in the Business, including
without limitalion in the discharge of the Assumed Obligations in accordance with the torms of
the Assumed Instruments and other Legnl Requirements applicable thereto.

421 Ycar 2000. Scliess have not reccived any claimt or notice, and have no
Knowledge, that (i) any of the Products is not designed to or does not mansge, calculatc,
sequence, compare and manipulate data involving dates, including single century formulas and
multi-century formulas and including leap years, or does not csuse au sbnormally ending
scenario within the application or generule fucorect values or tnvalid results :nvolvx}\g such
datcs; or (i) any dateselated uscr interface functionaditics, date-related data imterface
functionalities or data fields associated with the Assets do not include the indication of century.
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or either of them) hus dealt with any broker or finder in connection with the {ransactions
contcmplated by this Agreement or incurred any lability for any finder’s or broker’s fees or
commissions in connection with the transactions contcmplated by this Agreement {or which
Buyer may be liable or that may resuit in sny claim against any of the Ausets,

4,23 Disclogure. The statements made by Scllers in thus Agrecement and m any of the
Related Agrecments (including without limitation the representations and warranties made by
Sollers herein und thersin and in the Schedules and Exhibits hereto and thereto, which are
incorporated by reference hercin and which constitute an infegral part of this Agreement), whean
taken as a whole, do nat include or contain (3wl on the Closing Duto shall not include or contain)
any untrue statemont of & muteniad fact, and do not omit (and on the Closing Date shall nat amait)
fo state any tmaterial fact required to be included in order for the statements made {o not be
materially misleading. To Selfers” Knowledge, there is no fact that i3 not in the public domain
that would materially adversaly affect, in relstion to the Purchase Price, the value a willing buyer
in Buyer's position would pay for the Assets, that (i) has not been set forth herein or in apy
Related Agreemicut or in any Exhibit or Schedule hereto or thereto, (i) 18 not known by Buyer oa
the date hercof or on the Closing Date, as the case may be, or (iii) in the excrcisc of reasonable
diligence should not have been known by Buyer, on the date hereof or on the Closing Date, as
the case may be, based vpon the information sct forth hevein or in any Related Agroemet or in
any Exhibit or Schedule heroto or thereto.

4.24 Investment Representationg. Each Seller represents and wagtants to and covenants
with the Buyer that;

(e) Seller is knowledgeable, sophisticated and experienced in making, and s
qualified to make, decisions with respect to investments in shares representing an investment
decision like that involved in the purchase of thic Shares, including investrnents in yecuditics
issued by CIC pumsuant hereto, snd has requested, reccived, reviewed and considered all
information Scller deeins relovant (ncluding the SEC Documenis) in making an informed
decision with respect to Gie Purchase Price Shares,

. (b) Seller is purchasing the Purchase Price Shares for its own account for
investment only and with no present intention of distributing the Purchase P'rice Sharcs ar any
amangement or understanding with any other pasons regarding the distribution of the Purchase
Prico Shares,

(¢} Seller shall not, directly or indirectly, offex, sell, pledge, transfer or otherwise
dispose of (or solicit any offers to buy, purchisse or otherwise acquire or ke a pledge of) any of
the securities purchased hereundes except in compliance with the Securities Act, applicable blue
sky laws, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunider.

(d) Seler hag, in connectior with its decigion to purcl?sc the Purchase I’n";e
Shares, relied with respect to CIC and its affuirs solely upan the SEC Documents and the
representations and warranties of CIC contained herein.

18
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(@) Seller 1s an “accredited investor” within the tmeuning of Rule 50! of
Regulation D promulgated under the Sceuritics Act.

425 Ability fo Bear Risk. Scller ix able 10 bear the economic risk of holding the
Purchase Price Shares for an indefinite period, including the loss of Seller’s entire investment.
The Putchase Price Sharcs were not offered or sold to Scller by any form of gencrul solicitation
or advertising.

4.26 No Transferability, Seller understands that: (a) subject W Section 6.6, the Porchase
Price Shares shall not be transferable in the absence of registration under the Secutilics Act or an
exemption therefrom (b) CIC shall provide stop transfer instructions o its transfer agent with
respect to the Purchase Prico Shares in order to enforce the restrictions contained in this Section
4.26; and (c) each certificate representing the Purchise Price Sharen shall be in the aame of
Seller or a Subsequent Purchaser and shall bear substantially the following legends (in addition
to sy tegends required pursuant 1o # Related Apreement or under applicable secarities {aws):

“THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY FROM THE ISSUER WITHOUT BEING REGISTERED
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “ACT™), OR ANY
OTHER APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS, AND ARE RESTRICTED SECURITIES,
AS TIHAT TERM IS DEFINED UNDER RULE 144 PROMULGATED UNDER THE ACT.
THE SHARES MAY NOT BE SOLD, PLEDGED, TRANSFERRED, DISTRIBUTED OR
OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF IN ANY MANNER (A “TRANSFER™) UNLESS THEY
ARE REGISTERED UNDER THE ACT AND ANY OTHER APPLICABLE SECURITIES
LAWS, OR UNLESS THE REQUEST FOR TRANSFER IS ACCOMPANIED BY A
FAVORABLE OPINION OF COUNSEL, REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE
ISSUER, STATING THAT THE TRANSFER WILL NOT RESULT IN A VIOLATION OF
THE ACY OR ANY OTHER APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAW.”

Buyer shall cause the legend contained in this Section 4.26 (0 be rernoved from a stock
certificate promptly aficr the reocipt by the Company’s transfer ageat of a ceoxtificate of Scller ar
a Subscquent Purchaser, whichever the case may be, certifying that the sale of the Parchase Price
Shures shall be conswrunated in accordance with an effective Registration Statement and the
requircment of delivering a current prospectus of CIC in connection with such sale.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, such Shares must be held by Sellers and Subsequent Purchaser in
certificated form until all restrictive legends required by applicable law may be removed in
accordance with applicable {aw.

5. Representations and Wamantieg of Buyer. Buyer hereby reprosents and warmants (o
Scllers as fotlows:

51 Orua ___;ﬂtl'g_]_u Lomonmte Power. Each of Buyer and CIC s a corporation duly
incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delawsre, with
full corporate power and aumonty to own, lease or licensc its propertics and asscts and to carry
on ifs respective business in the manner in which such business is now carried on.  Each of
Buyer and CIC is duly qualified to transact business in all other jurisdictions where the
ownorship, leasing, licensing of its properties and assets and the carrying on of its business as a
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forsign corporation requires such qualification, except for any failure to so qualify that is not
rensonably likely to have a Material Advemse Effoct.

5.2 Due_ Authorization: Enforceability. All requisite cocpotate uctions for the
execution, delivery and performance by Buyer and CIC of this Agreement and/or all Related
Agreements 16 which Buyer or CIC is 2 party have been duly performed, Buyer und CIC cach
has the full legzl capacity and legal right, power and authority to enter into this Agreement and
cach of the Related Agreements to which it is a party and o comsunumate the transactiaons
contemplaied hereby and thereby. This Agreement bas been duly executed and delivered by
Buyer and/or CIC, as the case may be, and this Agreement and cach of the Related Apreements
o which Buyer and/or CIC, as the cass may b, is a party, upon execution and delivery, will be,
a legal, valid and binding obligation of Buyer and/or CIC, as the case may be, enforceable in
accordance with their respective terms, except in each casc to the extent that such enforcement
may be subject to applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or similar laws
of general application nffecting the rights and remedies of creditors or sccured parties, and that
the nvsilability of equitable remodies, including specific performance, injunctive relief and
reformation, may be subject to cquitable defenses and the discretion of the court befare which
any proceeding therefor may be brought.

53 Abscoce of Conflicting Agregnentss  The cxecution and delivery of this
Agreernent and the Related Agreements to which Buyer andlor CIC is a party and the
cousummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and theceby (provided all of the Required
Congents arc obtained) will not () violate Buyer's or CIC’s certificete of formation and bylaws;
(b) violate any Legal Requirement applicable to Buyer or CIC; (c) conflict with, result in any
breach of or default, cvent creating rights of aceeleration, termination or cancellation or 2 1085 of
rights undcr, or require any payment fo or confer auy material tights upon sny third party under
or pursuant to any Govenunental Authorization, contract, note, mortgage, instrument, agreement,
Judgment, order, award or dectee ta which Buyer anid/or CIC is » party or by which Buyer and/or
CIC or any of its respective assets is bound or affected, or any statute, other law or regnlatory
provision affecting Buyrr other than any such conflict, breach, defanlt or event that is not
reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on Buyer's sbility to coosummate the
transactions contemplated hereby; (d) require Buyrr and/or CIC to obtain the approval, coasent,
authorization or act of or make any deslerstion, filing or registration with any Person or any
foreign, federal, state or local court or Governmental Authority, other than any such approval,
consent, authorization, act, declaration, filing or registration, the failure of which to bo obtained
or made is nol reasonably likely w have a material adverse effect on Buycer's ubility to
consummate the transactions contempinted hereby; (o) require Buycr and/or CIC to pay material
damnages, termination fees or similar penaltics to any Person; (f) result inv the creation or
imposition of sny Lien on any of the Assets, other than any such Lien that is not reasonably
likely to have & material adverse effect on Buyer's ability to consununate the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement; or (g) result In the acceleration of the Quc dalc of any material

obligution of Buyer,
The Shares representing the Purchase Price, when issued
2ad delivered o accordance with this Agrecuent, will be duly authorized, validly issued, fully

puid and non-assessable and frec from any preemplive right or Lien creatcd by statitc, CIC’s
certifieate of incorporation or bytaws ar any agreement 1o which CIC is a party and {rotu any

5.4  Purchase Priec Shares,
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Lien, other than any Lien created pursuant to this Agreement or by any action of either Seller.
Nowwithstanding the foregoing, such Shares will be subject to cettain cgstrictions on trangfer
pursuant to applicable Legal Requirements.

5.5  SEC Fuings. CIC has made available to Sellers truc and complete copies of its
Annaal Report on Porow 10-K for the fiveal year ended December 31, 1999, and {18 Guacrterly
Report on Formn 10-Q for the quarter ended Junc 30, 2000 (together, the “SEC Doguments™),
which CIC has filed with the SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act. As of theit respective filing
dates, the SEC Uocuments complied in all material mespocis with the requirements of the
Exchange Act, and none of the SEC Documents contained any untrue statement of a rmaterial fact
or omiticd 1 state a3 materia) fact required to be stned therein or necessary o make e
statements rande therein, in fight of the circumstances i1 which they were madc, not misleading,
"The consolidated. financin} staternents of CIC, including the notes thereto, included in the SEC
Documents (“Buyer Financial Statergents™) bave been prepared in accordance will the books
and records of CIC, have been prepared in sccordance with generally accepted sccounting
principles, as in effect from Lime to time in the United States (“GAAP™), consistently applicd
thronghout the periads covered thereby. The Buycer Fimancial Statements present fairly the
consolidaied financisl position, results of operstions and cash flows of CIC at the respective
dates thereof and throughout the respective periods covered thersby subject, in the cuse of
wnaudited Buyer Financia] Statements, to normat year-end accruals and sudit adjustments #nd ta
the sbsence of foatnotes thereto, none of which is material, CIC has filed all reports with the
SEC required to be filed by it pursuant to applicable Legal Roquirements during the preceding
two (2) years, CIC may uss Form S-3 to register the Shares to be issued to Sellors hereunder,
and neither Buyer nor CIC is aware of any reason wlhy such Registration Statement would be
defayed in becoming cffective.

5.6 Brokers and Finders. Neither Buyer not any Person acting or its behalf has dealt
with any broker or finder in conicction with the transactions conternplated by thig Agrecinesnt or
incurred rny liability for any finder's or broker’s focs or cammissions in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement for which cither Seller ray be tinble.

5.7  Rizclosure. The statemeants made by Buyer in this Agrocment and in any of the
Related Agreements (including without limitation the represcatations and waurantics made by
Buyer hercin and therein and in the Schedules and Exhibits hereto and thereto, which are
incorporated by refcrence herein and which constitute an intogral pait of this Agrecment), whea
taicen as a whole, do not include or contain (and on the Closing Date $hall tot include or contain)
#ny untrue statement of a material fact, and da not omif (snd an the Closing Date shall not omic)
10 state any material fact required (o be included in order for the siatements made to ot be
materially misleading.

5.8 U,S. Busincss Establishment. Buyer's acquisition of the ?cllcr Intellectual
Propetty horcunder is most dircotly concerned with a business csmablishment or fixed

establishment of Buyer in the United States,
39 No General Salicitation. Neither Buyer nor CIC haz offered or sold Shaces during

i i icitati 1era] advertising
the six months preceding the date hereof by means of goneral solicitation of generi :
(23 those 'u:nmparc used in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1502, as
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amended), or in any manner involving a public offering within the meaning of Section 4(2)
thereof, except pursuant to an cffeclive registration statement or in a manner such that guch
offers undd safes would nat be integrated with the ofler and sale of the Purchase Price Shares to
Sellers pursuiuit to this Agreement for purposes of defermining whether such offer and sale ure
exempt from regisiration under such Act.

5.10  Exermpt Trangaction. The offer, sale and tosfor of the Purchase Price Shares to
Selies by Buyer pursuant to this Agreanent is exempt from the regisiration rcquirements of the
Securities Act ¢f 1933, as amended.

G Covengnts and other Agreements of Sellers and Buyer.
6.1 (}Qg;;’nuitx and Maintenance of Operations. Except az Buyer may otherwise agree

in wrifing, until the Cloaing:

{a) Sellers shall continue to (i) maintain (A) Scllers’ respective rights in the
Seller Inteffectual Property (including all applications, registrations and other filings with respect
thereto), (B) the Tangible Porsonal Property in goad operating condition and vepair, ordinary
wear and tear excepted, (C) Sellers’ insurance s in effext on the date of this Agrecment,
(D) Scllers” inventories of equipment and supplicy included within the Assers at levels cannistent
-with past practices, (£)all of Sellers’ business books, records and files, including Service
Records, conmistent with past practices, and (ii) operate the Busincss in complinnce in il
‘ material respects with gl Legal Requirements, Sellers shall uge commercially reasonable cfforts
to keep available the scrvices of the Employees and Scllers® contractors and 1o preseive any
business relationships with customiers, suppliers and others having business dealings with Sellers
in connection with the Business,

) Without limiting the generulity of the loregoing, and except as expressly
conernpiated hercunder, Sellers shall not, prior to Closing, without Buycr’s prior written
consent: (i) self, bransfor, lease, assign, license or otherwisce dispose of any of the Asscts,
including uny right in any Seller Intellectual Property, except salos in the ordinary course of
business; (i) create, assume or permit to exist say Lien on any Assel; (iti) amend, terminate or
allow to cxpire any Governmental Authorization, Contract or other instrument; (iv} subjoct (o
(v), enter into any contract oc commitment of any kind relating o the Business except in the
ordinaey course of business consistent with past practices and except for the ranewal on their
existing terms of Contracts that would, but for such renewal, terminate in accordance with their
teths prior to Closing; (v} modify, amend or imcur any obhg,auon: _agreement or other
areangement that is reasonably likcly to adversely affect Buyer’s a@zhty to dischurge the
Assumed Obligations or use or operute any of the Assets or Produets; {vi) dc!ay'p'aymcnt of any
account payable or ather Hability boyond its due dstc or the date when sachh haln!xty would have
been paid in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices, whlchwdclny f;onld
adversely affoct the veluz of the Assets; or {vii) take ar omit to take oy action, whicl action of
omission could materiatly adversely affect the value of the Assets.

6.2 Access 1o Scllers and Business.
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(2) Sellers shall afford to Buyer's officars, employees and other authorized
represcntatives complete aceess during normal business hours to the Business znd Asscts and to
the facilities, offices, computer systems, Products, properties, Employees, business documents,
business and finaacial records, Service Records, customers, suppliess and vendors of Scllers o
the extent Buyer deems necessary or desiruble to complete its due dilipence investigation, and
shall furnisk to such individuals such additional information conceming Sellers, the Assets and
the Business 38 ¢hall be rcasonably requesied No investigation by Buyer or ils rcprescatstives
hercunder shall affect or limit the scope or substance of Seller’s reproscntations and warrunties
under this Agreement.

(b} For a period of one (1) yoar followiny the Closing, upon reasonable notice
by Buyer, Sellers shall, at Buyer's expense, afford Buyer's officers, employees, accountants and
other aathorized .representatives complete access during normal business hours to Sellery’
business and financial records and accountants to emsble Buyer to obtain any information and
data required in connection with the preparation of Buyer’s aad its Affilintes” financial
statcments and any regulatory filings relating to the Business or this Apreement.

(c) For a period of six (6) months following the Closing, upon written sequest
of Buyer, each Scller shall diligently search its e-mzil files for information requested by Buyer
(via subject or key word query formulated by Buyer nfter consultation with such Seller), and
shall disclosc to Buyer all c-mails responsive 1o such query, except o the extent that any such o
mail contains third party information that such Seller is prohibited from disclosing to Buyer
pursuant to a curreat, valid and enforceable nondisclosure agreement with g third party. Each
Seller shall redact from any e-mail Jocated pursuant to this Section 6.2(c) any such third party
information and shall promptly deliver to Buyer each such e-mail with such third party
confidentia} information redacted. If, during any such gearch, o Seller discovers information that
relstes to Seller Intcllectual Property but is not regponsive to the query upon which such search ig
made, such Seller shall disclosc such information to Buyer, ¢xcept to the extent Sellers are
prohibited from disclosing such information to Buyer pursuant 1o a curtent, valid and enforceable
nondisclosure agreement with 4 third party. -

63 ~ Conhideniiality,

() From and afler the date hercof, (i) except with Buyer's prior writicn
conscunt, and subject to Section 6.5 or as otherwise roquircd by applicable law, Sellers shull, and
shall cause their respoctive officers, directors, sharcholders, Employecs, independent contractors,
consultants and other agents and representatives, o maintsin the conlidentiality of the
Confidentint Informartion (as defined herein) relating to Sellems, the Assets, the Products and the
Business; and (ii) uatil the Closing Date, except with Sellers® prior written consent, Buycr shali,
and shall cause its officers, directors, ghareholders, cmployees and other agents and
representativey, to muintain the confidentiality of the Confidential Information regurding Scllers
and the Busincss that Buyer obtains in connoction with this Agrecment,

) For purposcs herecf, “Confidential loformation™ meuns _tmde secrets,
know-how, inventions, idcas, concepts, prices, customer and marketing information and p_lans,
prospective customer information, compelitor ini‘or_mation, ‘ﬁnnnclal information, business
opportunities, employce- and other personnel-related infonmation, research and any other non-
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public tecinical or business iformation; provided, that Coafidential Information shall not
include information that: (i) is as of the date hercof, or uubsequently becomes, genemlly
available to the public through no fault of, or breach of any confidentiality obligation by, a party
hereto, (it) the Person to whom such information is discfosed can demonstrate (o have had such
information in its possession without any breach of any Legal Requirement or other obligation of
confidentiglity of such Person, (iif) is independently developed by & thind party without the use of
any Confidentinl Information disclosed in violation hereof, which independent development shall
be documented in writing or {iv) a third party lawfully obtains from a Person that has the right to
transfer or disclose such information and disclosed such information without any breach of any
confidentiality obligation with regpect thereto.

6.4 Cerpin_Changes: Notifieation: Updnted Schedules.  Except as permittsd or
contemplated by this Agreament, none of the parties hereto shal) knowingly take any action that
would render any representation or warranty made by it in this Agreement to be inaccurate as of
thc Closing Date. Each party shall promptly notify the others of any action, suit, proceeding or
investigation that iz instituted or threatened against such party to restratn, prohibit or otherwise
challenge the legality or propricty of any transaction conternpiated Ly this Agrestnent, Scliers
shadl notify Ruyer, promptly upon becoming aware theceof, of any lawsuit, clzim, proceeding or
investigation that may be threatened, brought, asserted or commenced after the date hereof
against a Setler with respect o agy of the Assets or the Business. Each party heroto shall aotify
tho others of any fact or circumstance as to which it obtuing knowledge that causes any of ity
respoctive representations and warrantics made by it in this Agreement to be untrue in any
miaterial respect as of the dato hercof or as of any other date on or prior to the Closing Date.

6.3  No Public Annowugement Prior to the Closing Date, aeither Buyer nor Scilers
shull, without the other's prior approval, make any press reltase or other public snnouncement
concemning the trunsactions contempiated by this Agreement, except as and to the extent that any
such party shall be so obligated by law, in which case the other paxty shall be advised and the
partics shall use their reasonable efforts to cause a mutually agrocable rclecase or announcoment
10 be issued; provided, that notwithstanding the forepoing, upon cxecution of this Agreement,
Buyer shall be entitled to issue a press rolcase and file with the SEC and the Nasdag SmallCap
Market 2 Current Report on Form 8-K with respect (o the transactions contemplated by this
Agrecment, in secordances with all spplicable Legal Requirements. Upon the exocution of this
Agrecruent, Buyer and Sellers will issue a joint press release in such form as set forth in
Schedule 6.5. Buyer shall be cntiticd to issue a press relcase upon the occurrence of the Closing,
provided, that Sellers shall have been afforded zn opportunity to review and comment thereon.

6.6  SEC Complianse: Purchase Price Shares: Registration Stateteny.

(a) Sellers acknowledge that the Shares to be issued to Scncm_ hereunder will
not be registered under the Securities Act apd will be issued in refiance Section 42) of the
Socurities Act. Each of the certificates represcating such Shares will contain a restrictive legend
in the form sct forth in Schedule 6.6(a). Buyer shall use its reasonable best cffon§ o cause the
sdditional restrictive logond provided for in Schedule 6.6(3) to be mt'novi:d within ﬁved(S)
business days after a Selles’s request therefor in respect of Purchase Price Shares deliverc Lo
such Seller out of cstrow in conformity with the terms and provisions of tho Esciow Agreement

and this Agreement.
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) ) As soon gy reasonably practicable, but not more than thirty (30)
days following the Closing Date, Buyer shall cause CIC 1w file at CIC's cxpense a registration
statement on Form S-3 (or such other form as CIC shall be cligible o usc) with the SEC
(“Rogistration Statement™) covering the resale of the Shurey represeating the Purchase Price (the
“Purchase Price Shares™). Buyer shalf cauge CIC to use its reasonable best efforts o cause the
Registration Statemnent to be declared effective by the SEC as soon as reasonably practicable. It
iz intended that pursuant to the Registration Statement Scllers and Subsequent Purchasers (as
defined hecein), may resell the Purchase Pree Shares 1o the public during the Resale Perrod (as
defined below) without restriction cxecpt for prospectus delivery requirements and other
applicable requircments under federat and statc securitics iaws, Ruyer shell cause CIC (o file
and use itz reasonuble best efforts to crusc to become effective as soon 45 reasonably practicable
all amendments, povt—cfleciive amendments and supplements 1o the extent legally required to
enable the resale of the Purchase Price Shares 10 bo made by the foregoiug pursuant to alt (.8,
Legal Requirements during the two (2) year period following the date hereof (the “Resaie
Potiod™). Buyer shall cause CIC to delivex to Scllers and Subsequent Purchusers such number of
copies of any prospectus (as amended and supplemented) required by such Lepal Requirements
to be delivered upon regale of e Purchase Price Shares during the Resale Perod as Sellers or
Subsequent Purchasers, as the case may be, may reasonably request. Buyer shajl cause CIC
taka such action as shall be reasonably necessary to register the Purchase Prce Sharcs under
Section 12 of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 0 maintain such registration
and to list and keep continually listed the Purchase Price Shares on the Navdsq SmallCap Muket
during the Resale Period.  Buycer shall cause CIC 10 use ils reasonable best effonts to qualify and
maintain the qualification of the Purchasec Price Shiares under such state. Logal Requircments,
including blue sky lnws, for offer and resale to the public during the Resale Perdod as Scllers und
Suhsequent Purchasers shall reasonably request.

(i)  Prior to the effectivencss of the Registmation Statement, (A) Setlers
shsll not gel} or otherwise transfer any of the Purchase Price Shares to any Persons other than
Persons who are institutional or acerodited investors and who arc not cngaged in businesscs that
compete, directly or indirectly, with Buyer or any of itz Affitiates (such Personz, “'Subocquent
Purchasers™, (B) Scllers shall not scll or otherwise wrunsfer the Purctage Price Shares to more
than fifteen (15) Subsequent Purchasers who agree to comply with all applicable securities faws
and to accept legended securities, (C) Scllers shad not scil or transfer the Purchase Price Shares
in block trades of less thag 100,000 Sharcs and (D) Sellers shall notify Buyer thereof within five
() Business Days following a zale of any of the Purchase Price Shares, which notice shall
include the name, address and telephone and fucsimile numbers for such Subsequent Purchaser,
us well #s the number of Purchase Price Sharces purchesed by such Subsoquent Purchaser.

(iti) Prior to the cffecliveness of the Registration Stalement, onc
Subsequent Purchaser may transfer, in a manger that would comply with the requirements of
Scction 6.6(b)(ii) as applicable o Sellers, all of its Purchase Price Fhares to pot more than onc
transferee which transferoe shall agree not to seli or otherwiso transfer any of the Purchase Prico
Shares prior to the cffcctiveness of the Registration Statement. Such transferee s:nall be c_ic:cmc.-d
10 be 2 Subsequent Purchaser for purposes of Section €'>.6 a?xd 426. TNotwithstanding the
foregoing. at all times prior to the effectivencss of the Registrative Stalement, there shall be no
more than fifteen (15) Subsequent Purchasers.
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(c) From the date hereol through the Closing Dute, Sellery shall not sell short
any shares of the stock of CIC,

() Buyer shall causc CIC to make gencrally available (o its security holders
{and Qeliver 1o Scllers), in the manner contemplated by Rule 158(b) under the Securitics Act or
atherwise, as soon as practicable but in any cvent not later than 120 days after the end of CiC’s
fiscal quarter in which the first anmiversary date of the Closing Date accurs it the emd of such
fiseal quacter is the end of CIC’s fiscal yeur (and if the end of such fiscal quarter is not the end of
CIC's fiscal year, then such period shall be reduced to 50 days), an cacnings statement of CIC
satisfying the requirements of Soction !1{a) of the Securitics Act and covering a period of at
leust twelve (12) consccutive months beginning afier the Closing Date.

() Buyer shall indemnify, defend and bold harmless cach Scller and
Subsequent Purchaser, and ench of their respective officers, directors, agents and cmployces,
against and in respoct of any losses, claims, damages or linbilities, joint or severul (inctuding
lcgal or other fees and expenses reasonably incurred by them in connection with investigating or
defeading any such loss, claim, damage or lability), to which such Scller or Subsequent
Purchaser, or any of then, ruay become subject under any applicahble [egal Requiremnent insofar
a3 such losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actions with respect thereto) arise out of or arc
based upon any untrue statement or alleged untruc statcment of any material fact contained in the
Registration Statement, or arise out of or sro based upon the omission or alleged omission to
stalc thereiy a rnalerind foct required t0 be stated therein or necessacy 10 make the statements
therein not misleading, except to the extent that any such untrue infonmation is based upon
written information supplied by such Seller or Subsequeni Purthaser, or any of them, or by any
of their respective representatives, as the case may be, for use in the Registration Statement.

(H Sellers and Subsequent Purchasers shall comply with all U.S. Eegal
Requirements with respect to the sale of the Shares issued hereunder. Euch of Sellers (ointly
and severally in respect of cach other) and cach Subseguent Purchuser shall indernnily, defond
and hold harmless Buyer, its officers and directors and any controlling persons of Buyer sguinyr
and in respect of any losses, claims, damages or liabilities, joint or several (including legal or
other fees rnd expenses reasonsble incurred by any of them in connection with investigating or
defending aay such loss, claim, damage or linbility), to which Buycr or any such persons may
become subject under applicable Legual Requirernents insofar as such losses, claims, damages or
lishilities (or actions with respect thercto) arise out of or are based upon the omission or alleged
omission to state thawin a matetial fact required 1o be stated thercin or necessary o mako the
ataterments therein not misleading, but only to the extent thal any such untrue statement or
omission is based upon written information supplied by such Scller or Subsequent Purchaser or
its respective representatives for use in the Registration Statcment.

0.7 Required Consents. From and afler the execution hereof, Sellers shall use their
best efforts to obtsin us expeditiously as poasible all of thc Required Consents, in form and
substance acceptable to Buyer. Nothing herein shall require the expenditure or paymeut of any
funds (other than in respsct of normal and usual attomneys' fees) or the giving of any ather
consideration by Bayer in connection with obtainiog the Required Consents.
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6.8  Delivery of Financial Infonnation.

(z) Betweoen the date hereof and the Closing Date, promptiy afier the
preparation thereof, Scllers shall deliver to Buyer true, comrect and complete copies of any
finsneial statements prepared by Sellers in the ordinary course of business during such time.

) in addition 1o, and without limiting the gencrality of Scotion 6.8(), (i) not
later than Oclober 16, 2000, Scllers shall have delivered or caused to bo delivered 10 Buyer true
and complete copies of (A) an audited consolidated balance sheet of Scllers as of Decerader 31,
1999, und a reviewed uanaudited consolidated balunce sheet of Sellers as of June 30, 2000,
(B) audited statements of income and cash flows for Sellers for the 12-month period cnded
December 31, 1999, and reviewed unaudited statcments of income sndd cash Hows for Scllers for
the zix-month petiod eaded June 30, 2000, (C) audited statements of cash flows for Scllers for
the 12-month period cnded December 31, 1998 and (D) footnotes with respect ta zll of the
foregoing in sccordance with UK Auditing Standards, and all of the forogoing reconciled to
GAAP; and (ii) not later than October 31, 2000, Sellers shall have delivered or causced to be
delivered to Buyer a reviewed unaudited consoliduted balance sheet of Sellere a8 of September
30, 2000, and reviewed unaudited statements of income and cash flows for Sellers for the nine-
month period ended September 30, 2000, and footnotes with respect thereto all of the foregoing
reconciled to GAAP (all of the forcgoing financial statements, colfectively, 1999 Finaucial
Statements™).  Sellers shall be lishle to and shall pay to Buyer damages in the amount of (X}
$250,000 in cash, if Sellers shall not have delivered all of the 1999 Financial Statcments
described in clauses (A), (B), (C) aud (1) by October 16, 2000 or the 1999 Financial Stalernents
described in clause (i) hereof by October 31, 2000; and (Y) an additional $100,000 for each
month following the applicabie due date set forth herein during which Sellers shall not have
delivered any of the 1999 Financial Statements. Scllcrs agree and acknowledge that the failure
{6 deliver the 1959 Financial Staterents to Buyer by the applicable due dates set forth herein
will couse Buyer to be damaged, and that the damages set forth herein constitute a reasonable
estimate of the amount of such damzpes,

6.9  Non-Competition Agreements. On tho Closing Date, Scllers shall execute and
deliver & Non-Competition Agrocment, in the forin of Exhibit Bz} (the “Nop-Competition
Agreement”).

6.10  Tuxes. All Taxes (other than V_A T.) incurred in connection with the transactions
contecmplated by this Agreement shall be paid by Buyer, and all V.A.T. incurred in conncction
with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be shared cqualiy by Sellers and
Buyer.

6.11 Scllers® Premiscs. For a peniod of up to six (6) months following the Closing,
Sellers shall muke available to Buyer complete, exclusive and unresiricted access to and use of
Sellers® offices, located at the address set forth in Sghedule 6.11 (including all equipment and
facitities jocsted at such offices, regardicss of whether included within the Assets) (the
“Premises™), for the purpose of performing the Assumcd Obligngions in accordance with their
\crms, providing the Products and otherwise using and oporsting the Asscts.  Bauyer shail
reimburse Scllers, pursuant to a Consulting znd Reimburscment Agreement in the form of
Exhibit C (the “Consulting and Reimbursement Agreement™), for Sellers® actual und reasonable
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costs of maintaining the Premises, which reirmbursable cogty shull include rent, utifity churges
and rental charges for any personal property not included within the Asscts, subject (o the terms
of the Consulting und Reimbursoment Agreement. It (s expressly understood that Buyer shall
not assume or subleage, or otherwise become a party to or liable with respect (o, any real
property lease with respect (0 the Premises. In the event that Buyer intends to vucate the
Premiscs prior to the cxpiration of such six (6} month period, Buyer shall notify the applicable
Seller in writing at least ten (10) business days prior to the date on which Buyer intends to vacate
the Premises. From the dato hercof through the date Buyer vicates the Premises, Sellers shall
not remove any material itemn of personal property from, or otherwise alter, the Prerdises in any
manter that would prevent or interfore with Buyer's use of the Premises as contemplated herein.

6.12 Reimbumement of Cenain Lxpenses. From and after the Closing Date, Buyer
shall or shall cause CIC to reimburse Sellers for cortain specifid costs incurred by Sellers in the
opcration of the Business, in accordance with the terms of the Consuliing snd Reimbursement
Agrecment, which reimbursable jitems shall include Sellers” reasonable costs and cxpenses
incurred in operating the Premises and such othér costs and cxpenses as are set forth in the
Congulting and Reimbursement Agreement.

6.13  No-Shop Covenant. Subject to Sellers” fiduciury duties, from the date hereof untif
the earlier of the Closing or the termination of this Agreement in accordance with {ts terns, (a)
Selfers shall not, and shall cause their respective officers, directors, sharcholders, agents and
repregsentitives not to, directly or indirectly, (i) solicit apy offer from any Person other than
Buyer for any foun of business combination or acquisition ot disposition of all or any of the
Assets or the Business, or initiate or participate in any negotiation or provide confidential
information with respect to any such business combination or acquizition, (it) solicit any offer
from any FPerson ather than Buyer for any transsaction involving a Seller that would preclude or in
any way interfere with the conswnination of the transactions contemplatod by this Agreement, or
initiate or participate in any negotiation or provide coufidential information with respeet to any
such wansaction, or (ifi) authorize any of their representative, agents, afficers, directors or
sharcholders to take any of the actions prohibited in this Section 6.13, and (b} Sellers shall use
reasonablo cfforts to prevernt any such person or entity from taking any of the actions prohibited
in this Section 6,13; provided, that notwithstanding the foregoing. Scllers shall promptly notify
Buyer in writing of the occurrence of any of the events described in clause (8) hereof, regardless
of whether prohibited by this Section 6.13.

6.14  Further Assurances: Satisfaction of Covenamts, Sellers and Buyer cach shali
exocute such additianal documeats and other papets and take or cause to be taken such further
action as may be reasonably roquired to carry out the provisjons hercof and to consumunate and
cffectuate the transactions contemplated hereby. Sellexs and Buyer shall each use, and Buyer
shall cause CIC 1o use, comruercially reasonable efforts to satisfy cach of its covenan(s and
obligations under this Agreement and to satisfy each of the conditions to Closing imposed ou it
hereunder.

6.15 Change of Business Name, PenOp agrees that within one (1) Busmess D?y
following the Closing, and PenOp UK agrees that by November 30, 2000, it will chunge its.
corpocate name (and if applicable any trade or fictitious names {t is cmtitled 10 use), and, if

necessary, those of any of any of its Affiliates, such that none of Sellers® or their AfGQliates’
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corporaie, trade or fictitious names will contain the terms “PenOp,” “Signatuse One,” “Peripherl
Vision,” “CIC,” “Communication Intelligence Corporation” or any other ferm incorporating or
confusingly similar with such terms. Sellers agree that from and afler the Clnsing neither they
nor auy of their Afliliates will use or conduct business using any of such names other than to
10tify Persons of their name changes in connection with winding up their respective businesses
and their respective dissolution procesdings.

7. Conditions Precedent to Buyer's Obligations. The obligations of Buyer 1 purchase and
acquire the Assets mnd to assume the Assumnod Obligations arc subject to the satisfaction or
waiver, at or prior to the Closing Date (as provided herein), of the following conditicns:

7.1 Representations and, Wamanties _of Scliers.  Pach of the representations and
warranties made by Scllers herein shall be true and comect in alf material respects {without
regard 1o any “matcriality” or “matcrial adverse cffect” qualifications set forth therein) ag of the
Closing Date or, if made 85 of a specific date, 29 of such date.

7.2 Covenants. Each Selfer shall have performed and camplied 1o all materia!
respects with all covenants and ngrecments required by this Agreoment to be performed or
compiied with by it prior to or at the Clasing,

7.3 Material Consents, The Material Consenta shalt have been obtained.

74  Judgments. There shall not be in cffect on the Closing Date any judpment,
decree, order or other prohibition having the force of law that would prevent or make untawful
the Closing, and no judgment ot judgments in the agpgregate amount of $250,000 or more shall
have boen entered agninst Setlers or either Seller by any court or other tribunal. -

75  Matcal Adverse Change. No event shall have occurred hetween the date of this
Agreement and the date on which the Closing is to occur that has had » muteriz} udverse cffect
on the Assefs, trken as a whole, or the ability of Scllers to consummate the transactions
contemplated heroby.

7.6 Qpinion of Sellers’ Counsel. Sellers shall have furnighed Buyer with opinious of
the law firme of White & Case LLP, Kenyon & Keayon and Oshome Ciarke, each counsel for
Sellers, in the forms sct forth in tbita D-1, D-2 and D-3, respectively, which apinions will be
dated the Closing Date.

7.7 Duc biligence. Buyer shall have completed and shall be satisfied with the results
of its due diligence investigation of thie Busincss and the Assets,

7.8 Pankruptey Proceedings. Neither Seller shall huve ecntered into or become subject
to voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy or rcorganization proceedings or shall have filed a
petition for dissolution.

7.9  Deglivery of Certificates and Documents. Sclicrs shall have furnished to Buyer the
fallowing:
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(a) a certificmte of cach Seffer’s Secretary as 1o (1) sach Seller’™s articles of
incorporation and bylaws (or other constituent documents), (ii) ail actions taken by and on behulfl
of such Scller to authorce the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the
Related Agrcements and (iif) the incumbency of officors signing this Agrecment and any Related
Agreement on hehalf o swch Selfer

(b) a certificate of Tegal existence and long-fonm good standing certificate (or
the equivalent as may be appropriate under U.K. law) of each Seller from the Secretary of State
(or comparable official) of its respective state or jutisdiction of formation;

() u certificatc of an cxoentive officer of cach Seller, certifying on behalf of
such Seller that the conditions sct forth in Sections 7.1, 7.2, 7.4, 7.5 and 7.8 have boen met a3 to
such Scller;

(d) - aBilf of Sale and Assignmens, o the forn of Bxbibit B. duly exceuted by
each Seller;

(c) an Assumption Agrcement, in the form of Exhibit [ (the “Assumption
Agroamens,”, duly executed by Sellers;

(€3] the Escrow Agreement, duly executed by Scllers;
(2) the Non-Competition Agrecment, duly cxeculed by each of Sellers:

(h) all other instruments of assignment, powers of attorney and other
documenis and instruments as wrc noccssary or are reasonably requested by Buyer to effcct the
transfer of the Assets, including «ll Seller Irtellectual Property (including without limitation
Patcnt Rights, Trademarks and domain nsmes), o Buyer and to the extent applicable tho vesting
of title thercto in Buyer, all in accordance with any applicable Legal Requircments ind in form
reasonably acceptable 1o Buyer; und

) evidence satisfactory to Buyer that all Licas affecting or encumbering the
Assots shall have boor terminated, released or waived, effective as of the Closing, including
without limitation exeeuted pay-off letters in form satisfactory to Buyer with rospect to any
indebtedness of Sellers being paid ofY nt Closing that is secured by any of the Assets,

7.10  Third Party_Agreements. (1) Bach of the individuals listed in Schedule 7.10 shall
have duly executed and delivered a Non-Competition Aggeement, in the form of Exhibit B-2 or
B-3, as applicable; (if) Kirk LeCompte shall have duly exccuted and delivered an Independent
Contractor Agreement, in the form of Exhibit G; and (1ii) Florentis [£d. shall have duly executed
and delivered the Consulting Services Agreement, in the form of Exhibit H.

8. Conditions Precedent to Sellers’ Obligations. The obligations of Scllers to convey the
Assets to Buyer hereunder are subjoct to the satisfaction or waiver at or prior to the Closing Dule
(23 providet herein) of the following conditions:

8.1 Kepresentations _and,_Warantics of Buyer. Bach of the ropresentations and
warrantics made by Buyer hierein shall be truc and cormect in all material respects (without regard
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10 any “roateriality” or “material sdverse effect” qualifications set forth therein) as of the Closing
Date or, if rnade as of a specific date, as of such date.

. B2 Covensnls, Buyer shall have performed and complied in all material respects
with alf covenants and agreements required by this Agreoment to be performed or compticd with
by it prior to or at the Closing,

83 Judemients. Thoro shall not be in effect on the Closing Dmie any judgment,
decree, order or other prohibition having the force of law that would provent or make unlawtul
the Closing,

8.4 Payment for Assets. Buyer shall have delivered the Shares 1o be detivered by it
pursudnt to Section 3.2(b).

RS Opinion of Buyer's Couneel. Buyer shall have furnished Sellers with the opinion
of the law firm of Baer Marks & Upham LLP, counsel for Buyer, ini the form set forth in Bxhibit
1, which opinion will be dated the Closing Date.

8.6 DRelivery of Centificates and Documents. Buyer shall have furnished to Sellers the

following:

@ a certificate of Buyer's and CIC’s Secretary as to (i) Buyer’s and CiC™s
certificates of formation and bylaws, (ii) resolutions of Buyer and, to the cxtent applicable, CIC,
suthorizing the execution, delivery and performance of this Apreement and the Related
Agreements; and (ii) the incumbency of officers signing this Agreemeat and the Reiated
Agrecments on behalf of Buyer and, 1o the extent applicable, CIC;

®) a certificato of legul existence and good standing of zach of Buyer and
CIC from the Secrectary of State of Buyer's and CIC's state of incorpomtion;

(c) a certificte of an executive officer of wach of Buyer and CIC certifying
that the conditions set forth in Sections 8.1, .2 and 8.3 have been mect;

(d) the Assumption Agreement, duly executed by Buyer, and
©) the Consulting and Reimbursement Agreement, duly executed by Buyer.

87  Cuaepty. CIC shall have duly executed and delivered 2 Guaranty, in the form of
Exhibit 1.

9, Survival of Representations and Warranties: Indemunity Holdback.

o.1 Survival. The representitions and warranties of the parties contaitied in this
Agreement (including obligations with respoct 1o indemnification under this Section 9} shall
survive the Closing for a period of one (1) year following the Closing Date, exccpt that (i)
subject to Clausc (ii), representations and warranties relating to Scller Intellectual Property shall
survive the Closing for a period of two (2) years following the Closing Date; and (i) the
representations snd warranties set forth in Section 4.7®)(i) and in the Brst sentence of
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Section 4.7(c), inclusive, and representations and warranties relating to Taxes, as well an the
parties’ respective covenants and ather obligations hercunder, shall survive for the duration of
the statute of limitations applicable thereto; provided, thut » purty’s timely delivery of a Claim
Notice {(as defined in Section 9.3(b)) hereunder shall extend the period of survival applicable to
any clala set forth therein through the date such claim {8 conclusively resolved. No
investigation by ecither party shall relicve the other party from any lisbility for any
misrepresentation, misicading statement or omission made by such other party in this Agrecement
or auy Related Agreement,

9.2 Indemuification.

@) Sellers, jointly and sovernlly, agroe to indemnify and bold Lusruless Buyer
aad its Affiliates, and their vespective stockholders, directors, officers, smployees, agents,
successors and assigns ("Buyor Indempitecs’™) from and apzinst any and sl Claims {as
heroinafier defined) to the extent such Claims are based upon, arise out of or relate to (i) a brench
of any representation or warnuty, or any fsilure to perform or comply with any of Seffers
covehants or agreements set forth in this Aggoapent or in any Relsted Agreement; (1) the
asscrtion of any Claim or legal action against Duyer or any other Buyer Indemnitee by any
Governmenta} Authority or other Person bascd upon, arising out of or relating to the ownership
of the Asscts or operation of the Business ot any act, omission, obligation or liability of Sclicrs
or any of their respective agents and oceurring, arising or scerning on or prior to, or existing o,
the Closing Date; (iii) any obligation or liability relating to the ownership or operation of the
Busincss or Asscts by Sellers, other than the Assumed Obligations; or (iv) any obligation to any
broker or finder employed or alleged to bave been amployod by it.

(b) Buyer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Sellers and their respective
stockholders, directors, officers, cmployccs, sgenls, successors and  assigns  (“Seller
Indetmnitecs™) from and against any and all Claims to the extent such Claims are based upaon,
arige out of or are related to (i) a breach of nny represenistion or warranty, or any failure to
perform or comply with any of Buyer's covenants or agreements contained in this Agrecment or
in any Related Agreement; (ii) the assertion of any Clabn or legal action agsinst Sellers or a
Seller Indemnitee by any Person or Govermeatsl Authority based upon, arising out of or
relating 10 the ownership of the Asscts by Buyer cccurting, arising or accruing after the Closing
Date (other than any Product Linbility with respect to any Product sold or provided prior to the
Closing Date), provided that such Claim or legal action is not based upon an act or omission
which occurred on or before the Closing Date; or (iii) any obligation to any broker or finder
employed or alleged to have boen employed by it,

(c) For purposes of this Agreement, 2 “Claim” shall include any and ait
liabilities, obligations, losscs, damages, deficiencies, demands, claims, fines, penalties, interest,
asgessments, judgments, actions, proceedings and suits of whateveér kind and naturc and all costs
and expenses relating thereto (including without limitation reasonable atomeys' fecs incurred in
connection with the investigation, defense and/ar prosccution thereof),
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9.3 Indemmity Shares: Assertion of Claims,

(») At the Closing, Buyer shall deposit the Indemnity Shares with the Escrow
Agens, pursuant to the terms of the Bscrow Agreement, which Shares and/or the proceeds thereof
shall provide a fund for the payment of Claims to Buyer Indemnitees in sccordance with the
terms hereof and the terms of the Escrow Agrecment.

®) In the cvent that cither panty believes it has an indemmification Claim
under Section 9.2, such party (the “Indempitee™) shal notify the other (the “[ndemnitor”) in
writing thereof (“Claim Notice™, which Claim Notice shall st forth the Indemnitec's estimate of
the dollar value of the indemnification sought by it, but ro such estimate shall have any effect on
the extent to which the Indemnitor shall have an obligation to indemnify the Indemnites. All
indemnification Claims paid out of the Indemnity Shares shadl be psid in accordance with the

terms of the Escrow Agreement.

9.4 Notice of and Right ta Defemd Third Party Claimg. Promptly upon receipt of a
Claim Notice or the commencement of any suit, sction or proceeding by a third party in respect
of which indemmificatton may be sought on acconnt of an indemnnity agreement contained in
Soction 9.2, the Indemnitce with respect to such Claim shall give notice in writing to the
Indemnitor with respect thereto.  The omission by such Indemnitee to so notify promptly such
Indemnitor of any such clatm or action shall not relieve such Indemnitor from any lisbility which
itmay have to such Indemnitee in connoction therewith, except to the extent such Indernmitor has
been prejudiced by such omission. In case any claim shall be asserted or suit, action or
procoeding commenced against an Indomunitee, the Indemnitor will be cntitled to participate
thercin, and, to the extent that it may wish, to assume the defense or conduct the settlement
therool.  Anything hercin to the contrary notwithstanding, Indemnitor shall not be cntitied to
settle any such suit, action or proceeding without Inderanitee’s consent, which conscnt shall be
not unreasonably withheld, unless the sole rolief provided is monctary damages. After notice
from the Indemnitor 16 the Indemnitcs of its clection to so assume the defenge, conduct or
settlement thereof, the Indemnitor will not be liable to the Indemuitee for any legal or othicr
expenses subsequently incurred by the Indemuitee in connection with the defense, conduct or
setttement thereof following such notics, The Indemnitee will reasonably cooperate with the
Indemnitor in connection with any such cluim assumed by the Indemnitor to make available to
the Indemuitor aif pertinent information under the Indcmnitee's control.

9.5 Limitations of Liability.

(2) No amount shali be payable by Seliers 10 Buyer or by Buyer to Sellers
with respect to indemnification of Claims for breaches of representations and warrantes pursuant
to this Section 9 unless and until the aggregate amount of such Claims required to be indemnified
by the respective Indemnitor pursuznt hereto exceeds 375,000, in which case the Indemnitor
shall be liable to the Indemnijtee for the emtire amount of 31l such Claims by Indemnitee;
provided, that the foregoing timitation shall not apply to Claims arising out of representations
and warranties relating to authority, Taxes or the matlers sct forth in Scction 4. 7(b)3) or in the
Birst sentence of Section 4.7(c).
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(t) Seilers’ and Buyer's respective liabifity for indemmnificarion for breaches
af roprosentations end warrantics pursuant 1o this Scction 9 shall be timited () until the fimst
anniversary of the Closing Date, to the amount of $10,600,000, and (1) fiom the firs! anniversary
of the Closing Date through the date two (2) years following the Closing Date, to the amount of
$3,290,000; provided, that the foregoing limitations shall not apply to Claims for breach of
representations and warranties relating lo authorily, Taxes or the matters set forth in
Section 4. 7(b)}3) or in the first sentence of Section 4.7(c). An Indesonitor's Hebility for
indemnification under this Section 9 shall be satisfied by payment of cash or delivery of Shares.

©r The amount of any Clam indemmifisble by either Buyer or Sellers
pursuant to this Section 9 shatl be reduced by the amount of any insurance proceeds received by
tho Indemnitoe in respect of such Clzims (and if such proceeds are reccived following an
indcmnification paymenat in respect of the relevant Claitn, the Indcmnitce shall pay to the
Indemnitor an amount equal to the lesser of (i) the amount of such proceeds and (ii) the amount
of the indernnification payment made by the Indemnitor).

@) No smount shalt be paysbic by Sellers 1o Buyer or by Buyer to Seliers
putrsuant to this Section 9 in respect of pumtive damages or consequentiaf damages.

(¢}  Nothing hercin shali be desmed to rolicve any parly hereto fiom any
common law duty to mitigate any Claim.

% No party shalf be entitled to be indemuifiod more than once wnder this
Agrecment for the same Claim,

19°43 Subject 10 any other express provigion of this Agreement, this Section 9
shull provide the sole remedy for any misrepresentation, breach of representstion or warranty or
breach of covensut or other agreement contained in this Agrecment, exccpt in the case af fmud,

10. Termination.

10.1  Termination. This Agreement may be terminsted prior to the Closing only in
secordance with the (ollowing;:

(a} a1 any time by mutual consent of Sellers and Buyer;

() by cither Sclfors or Buyer if the Closing hereunder has not taken place on
or before the Outside Closing Date (unless othorwise cxtended by agreement of all partics) othex
than by reason of a breach or default of any of the covenants or agreements contained in this
Agreeruent by the party seeking to lenminate; or

(c) by either Sellers or Buyer, at any time, if the other party is it moatesial
breach or material defavlt of its covenants and agreements under this Agreement, or if any of its
representations or warranties arc not truc in all material respects, and the party in breach or
default does not cure such breach or default within tweaty (20) days afier notice thereof i3
delivered in wriling, provided thust the terminating party #s not also in material breach or material

defasit hereunder; provided, that such twenty (20) day cure period shall not cxtead past the
Outside Closing Date.
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10.2  Supviving Obligations. In the event of termination of this Agreement by Buyer o
Scllers pursuant to this Scction 10, prompt wrilten notice thereof shall be given 1o the other
party; and tiis Agreernent shatll terminate, without further action by any of the parties hereto, and
a1l obligations of the parties hereunder shall tenninate, except for the oblipationz set forth in
Scctions 8.3, 9.2(a)i} (85 w0 breaches of covenants only), 92()(ivy, 9.20)() (as (o breaches of
covenants only), 2.2(b)(ili), 9.2(c) (insofar ag related to breaches of covenants only), 9.3(b), 9.4,
9.5, this Section 102, 103, 11, 13, 14, 15, 17, 18, 20 and 21,

103 Auorney’s Fees. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement that may limit
or qualify a party’s remedics, in the cvent of a dofuult by any party that results in a fawsuit or
other proceeding for any remedy avaifabic under this Agavement, the provailing party shall be
entitied to reimbursement from the defaulting party of ity reasonable Jegal fees and oxpenscs.

11. Expenses. Except as cxpressly provided herein, ecach party chalf pay its own cxpenses
incurred in connection with the authorization, preparation, execution and performance of this
Agreoment, including alt fees and expenses of counsel, accountznts, agents and other

representatives,
12, Financinl Statements. Sellers hereby consent to the inclusion by Buycr of the Financial

Statements and the 1999 Financial Statoments, if required to be 50 included by Buyer, in any
report requirsd to be filed by Buyer with the SEC, the Nasdaq SmallCap Market or any stock
exchange pursuant 1o applicable law, rule or repulation, including the Secaritics Act or the
Exchange Act. Subjoct o Section 6.8(b), upon the request of Buyer, Sellers agree to promptly
prepare (not fater than thirty (30) days after the date of such roquest) such financial statements
relating to the Seliers, the Assers or the Business (in addition to the 1999 Financial Statemertts)
a5 may be required to be filed by Buyer with the SEC, the Nasdaq SmallCap Market or any stock
exchange, All reasonable accounting costs other rcasonable foes and expenses incuered by
reazon of the preparation of the financial statements sct forth in Schedute 12 sfhall be bome by
Buyer; provided, that Buyer shall not be required to reimburse Sellers for any amount exceeding
the aggregate amount of £36,000 with respect (0 prepacation of such financint stutements. Seliers
shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the consent of (heir indcpendent public
accountants who prepared the Financial Statements and the 1999 Financial Statements to the
inclusion of the Financiul Statcments and the 1999 Financial Statements in any report roquired to
be filed by Batyer with the SEC, the Nasdaq SynallCap Market or any stock exchange.

13.  Entirg_Agrcement. Buyer and Sellers agrec that this Agrecment and the Related
Agrecraents, jacluding the Schedules and all Bxhibits hercto and any other written docurncnt or
insteument delivered pursuant hersto or thereto, constitutes the cutire agrecment between the
purties with respect to the subject matter hercof and supersedes ali prior understandings and
agreements with respect thercto.

14. Parties Obligated and Benefited. This Agreement will be binding upon the parties and
their respective assipns and successors in interest and will inure solely to the benefit of the
patties and their respective assigus and successors in interest, and no other Person will be entitled
to any of the benefits conferved by this Agrooment. Without the prior wrilten consent of the
other, neither Buyer nor cither Seller wili asstgn any of its rights under this Agrecment or
delegate any of its dutics uader this Agrecment, except that Buyer shalt have the .rizht 10 assign
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this Agreement to any Affiliate of Buyer without Sellers' prior consent, provided, tluat such
Afliliate of Buyer becomes a party o this Agrocment

15, Notices. All notices, requests, consents and other comumunications under this Agreement
shall be in writing and shall be defivered in person or mailed by Grst-clisy certified or rogistered
mail, retum roeeipt requested, postage prepaid, by reputable overnight mail or ecaurier ot by
telecopicr, in cither case, with receipt confirmed, addressed as follows:

If to Buyer:
Communication Intelligence Corporation
275 Shoreliie Drive, Suite 500
Redwood Shores, CA 94065
Telephone:  (650) 8027700
Facsimile: (650) 802-7716
Atteation: Guido [}Gregoria, President and Chief Executive Officer

With a copy to:

Buer Magks & Upham LLF

805 Third Avenue

New York, NY 10022

Telephone: (212) 702-5714
Tefecopy: (212) 702-5941
Attention: Jonathan J. Russo, Esq.

and

If to Sellers; .
PenOp Limited
PenOp Inc.
320 East 54 Stroct
New York, NY 10022
Telephone:  (212) 371-8948
Telecopy: 011 44 1373 452 744 (%6 Nick May)
Attentiocn: Howurd 1. Schochter, President

With 2 copy to:
White & Case LLP
1155 Avenue of the Arncricus
New York, NY 10036
Telephone:  (212) 819-8200
Telecopy: (212) 3548113
Attention: Steven Beteasky, Esq.

and
QOsbotne Clarke
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50 Queen Charlotte Strect

Hrigtol BS1 4HE

United Kingdom

Telephone:  O11 44 117917 4204
Telecopy: 01144 117 917 4205
Aftention: Bruce Roxburgh, Exq.

or at such other address or addressen as may have been furnished in writing by any party to the
others in accordance with the provisions of this Section 15. Sellers expressty acknowledge that
any notice to he delivered to Sellers hereunder shall be deomed delivercd when delivered to
PenOp, as set forth herein ’

Notices and other communications provided in sccordance with this Section 15 shall be deemed
delivered upon reeeipt The fumishing of any notice or commusicution required hereunder may
be waived in writing by the party eatiticd to receive such notice, Failure or delay in delivering
copics of any notice to persons designuted above o receive copies shall in no way adversely
affect the cffectivenoss of such notice or communication.

16. Amendments and Waivers. Except as otherwise expressly sct forth hetcin, any tenm of
this Agreement may bo ampended and the observance of any term of this Agrecment may be
waived (cither generally or in a particufar instance and either retroactively or prospectively) only
with the written consent of Sellers and Buyer. No waivers of or cxceptions to any term,
condition or provision of this Agreement, in any one or more instances, ahall be deemed to be or
construed as 2 further or continuing waiver of any sucl temn, condition or provision.

17, Severshility. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held or decmed, by a court or
other tribunal of cormpetent jurindiction, to bo invalid, inoperative o uncnforceable becayse of
the conilict of such provision with any constitution or statute or tule of public policy or for any
other rcason, such circumstance shall not have the cffect of rendering any other provision
invalid, inoperative or uncnforceable, and this Agrectuent shall be refonued und construcd as if
such Invalid, inoperative or unenforceable provision hud never heon contained herein and such
provision reformned so that it is valid, operative and enforceable to the maximum extent
permiticd.

18. Section Headings end Tomus. The sccticn hendings in thiz Agreement are for
convenience and refercnce purpases only and shall not ip any way affect the meaning or
inlerpretation of this Apreement.

19.  Gounterpants. ‘This Agrecment may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same
instrumpent, and this Agrecment shall becomne effective when counterparts that together contain
the signatures of each party hereto shall huve been delivered to Sellers and Buyer.

20. Goveming Law; Consent in Jurisdiction. This Agrecment shall be governed by and

construed and cnforced inn necordance with the law (withowt giviag cffect to the law g:?\{cming
the principles of conflicts of faw) of the Statc of New York, Any action to enforce, or atising out
of or relating in any way to, any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be brought and
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prosccuted in the appropriate coutt or cowts located within New York County, State of New
York, and the partics consent to the jurisdiction of said court or courts and to service of process
by registered mail, rotumn receipt requested, or by any other manner permitted by law, Rach
paty hareto agrees to not assert, by way of motion, as u defense or otherwise, in any such action,
suit or proceeding any claim that it is not subjoct personally to the jurisiiction of such court, that
tho action, suit or procoeding is brought in an inconvenient forum, that the venue of the actiot,
suit or proceeding fs improper or that (his Agrecment, or any other agreement or {ransaction
related hereto or the subject marter hereof or thereof may not be enforced in or by such court.

21.  Specific Performance: Performance by Sellers. The pasties hercto acknowledge that
moncy damages arc not an adequate remedy for violations of this Agreement and that any party
may, in its sole discretion, apply to a court of competent jurisdiction for specific perfotmunce og
injunctive or other relief (without the posting of any bond or other security) as such court may
docm just end proper in onder to enforce this Agrecment or prevent any violation hercof by any
of the parties horeto and, to the extont parmitted by applicable Legal Requirements, cach party
hereof waives any objection to the imposition of such relict, Any such specific or equitable
relief granted shall not bo exclusive, and an Indempitee shal? also be cntitfed to seek moncy
damages. Anything herein to the cantrury notwithstanding, z Seller*s breach of any obligation or
covenant or failure to satisfy any condition heceunder shall not rclicve the ather Seller of any
obligation of it hercunder to or failure to perform any obligution or covenant or to satisfy any
condition hercundet.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOW, the parties have executed this Asset Purchase Agreement as
of the date and year first above written,

BUYER-

CIC ACQUISITION CORY.

SELLERS:

PENOP INC,

vny kf)/.‘(/;{M_‘

PowavpbSdrech
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BILL OF SALE AND ASSIGNMENT

STATE OF WNEW YORK )
) ss.:
COUNTY OF NEW YORK )

PenOp Limited, a company organized under the faws of England and
Wales (“PenQp UK™), snd PenOp Inec. (“PenQp,” and together with PenOp UK,
“Sellers™), in accordance with and pursuant to the terms and provisions of that certain
Assct Purchase Agreament dated as of September 29, 2000 (the “Purchase Agreement”™),
by and smong Scllers and CIC Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation (“Byyer™). in
considerztion of ONE AND NO/160 DOLLAR (81.00) in lawful mency of the United
Statcs of America, and other good and valuable consideration to Selless, the receipt and
sufliciency of which are hereby acknowledged, do hereby prant, convey, sell, assign,
transfer and deliver unto Buyer, as of this - day of October, 2000, all of their right, title
and interest in and 1o cach of the Asssts (as defined in the Purchase Agreement), whether
rcal, personal or mixed, tangible or intangible, together with all replacements thereof and
additions thereto made, '

Sellers hercby constitute and sppoint Buyer, its successors and assigns,
Sellers® true and lawful attorney and attorneys, with full power of substitution, in Sellers’
names and stead, but on behalf of and for the bencfit of Buyer, its successors and assigns,
to demand and receive any and sl of the Assets, and 1o give receapis ond releases for and
in respect of the same and any part thereof.

This Bill of Sale and Assignment is executed and delivered pursuant to
and subjoct to the terms and conditions of the Purchase Agrecrment. IZach Seller hereby
covenants and agrees with Euyer that it will, at any time and from time to timue and
without any further consideration, at the request of Buyer, cxecute and deliver to Buyer
all such farther bills of sale, assignments and other iostrumecuts, supplementary,
confimatory or otherwise, ag may be reasonsbly requinsd by Buyer for the purpose ar ia
connection with the vesting or more effectively vestmg in Buyer the Assets conveyed,
sold, assigned and transferred hereunder or intended so to be pursuant © the Purchase
Agreement.

Al capitalized temms used herein but not otherwise defined herein shall
have the meanings given o them in the Purchase Agreement.

[74RLt VA
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. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Bill of Sale and
Assignment o be duly oxecuted this _ {ﬁl— day of October, 2000,

SELLERS:

PENOP LIMITED

PENQP INC.

o (1 Afecci L.

Nade: Towiri Seadier—

Tide:  Grestiléet-
BUYER:
CIC ACQUISITION CORP.

QAo

Namc: Xoszowu
Title: W (f‘ffCQ/L

6018223
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ek o Nu bl
*C] E OF W%‘M ;33..'

S
A %rr REMEMBERED that on this_ & - day of_ Ok, 2000, vefore me,
“+
(_1-:

2\ 8 Notary Public of the State of » personally appeared
I , to e known, who being by me duly sworn according to faw, on his/her
oath did depose and make proof to my satisfaction that he/she is the (-; of

PenOp Limited, a Scller named in and which executed the foregoing instrumnent, and that he

signed, scalod and delivered the same for and on behalf of said company, intending it to be
legally bound thereby.

Subscribed and swom to before me the day and year aforesaid as witness my hand
and oflicial seal.

STEWART POLLAK
Notary Pubiic, Stale of New York
No. 02P05042738
Qualihed in New York Cou
<mmmwmmamMm~mmmﬁﬁEI

Notary Public

604825
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stateor MoK )
county oF [Uee- Nole 3%

e Ol
‘E—A BE IT REMEMBERED that on this day, 2000, belore mc,
Qv_ a Notary Public of the State of . - personally appearced
\ [ to me known, who being by me duly sworn nccordmg to law, on his/her
oath did depose and make proof to my satisfaction that he/she is the ) of
PenOp Inc., a Seller named in and which exccuted the foregoing instrument, and that he signed

sealed and delivered the same for and on behalf of said corporation, intending it to be legaH);
bouand therchy,

Subscribed and swomn to before me the day and year aforesaid a5 witness my hand
and official scal.

TEWART POLLAK
Nomry Publia State of New Yark
No 2PO.1042736
Qualmed In New

Commission Expireg A‘:‘;z;k 2‘20‘2'8 2 { Notary public

6034823
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